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2024
Accommodations Tax Funds Request Application

Date Received: 09/01/2023 Time Received: 12:36 PM By:  Online Submittal

Applications will not be accepted if submitted after 4 pm on September 1, 2023

SUMMARY OF GRANT REQUEST:

ORGANIZATION NAME:   Hilton Head MLK Committee for Justice

Project/Event Name:   ATAX Grant

Contact Name:    Galen Miller Title:    Chairman of the Board

Address:    PO Box 21114, Hilton Head, SC 29925

Email Address:
   galenmiller68@gmail.com

Contact Phone:    843-290-2984

Event Date:    January 6-27 2024 Event Location:    Hilton Head Island (High School, Christ
Lutheran Church, USCB campus, Boys and Girls Club)

Total Budget: $23,960.00 Grant Requested: $5,000.00

Provide a brief summary on the intended use of the grant and how the money would be used. (100 words
or less)

We intend to use the funds for marketing to attract both locals and tourists to the MLK Month of
Events. We will also use the grant monies to partially fund our kick-off cultural event, a play by
the Gullah Kinfolk. Our MLK Month of Events includes a parade and luncheon program, an MLK
legacy event for youth at the Boys and Girls Club, an ecumenical service, a Shabbat Service,
Gullah Cemetery clean-up, the Gullah Kinfolks historical play, and our Dine and Dance
fundraising event. 

How does the organization/event either drive tourism to Hilton Head Island or enhance the visitor
experience on Hilton Head Island? How is this impact being measured?  (100 words or less)

Our Children’s Fun Day event in partnership with the Boys and Girls club brings together
children and their families from both Hilton Head and Bluffton. The Gullah Kinfolks are very
well-known all over the lowcountry and will attract new visitors to Hilton Head. We plan to market
this event in Savannah and Charleston, which will attract overnight visitors that will stay in hotels.
All of our events are open to the public and enhance the tourist experience for visitors looking for
options to celebrate the legacy of Dr. MLK Jr. We measure by collecting attendees's zip codes.

A.
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options to celebrate the legacy of Dr. MLK Jr. We measure by collecting attendees's zip codes.

Total Number of Physical Tourists Served:    31
A Tourist is considered a non-resident, traveling more than 50 miles to the Town of Hilton Head Island.

A.

Total Number of Physical Visitors Served:    74
A Visitor is considered a non-resident, who travels 50 miles or less to visit the Town of Hilton Head Island.

B.

Total Number of Physical Residents Served:    217
A Resident is considered any person who claims their property address within the limits of the Town of Hilton Head
Island as their primary residence.

C.

Total Number of Physical Patrons Served (A+B+C=D):    322D.

How was the Number of Visitors/Tourists Documented? (250 words or less)

We collected zip codes on a sign-in sheet. Unfortunately last year we only collected zip codes at
the Children's Day event. We estimate we served approximately 2,000 people across all of our
events. We will collect this data for all events in 2024.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS: 

For state reporting purposes, give a brief description of the organization. (250 words or less) 

The Hilton Head MLK Committee for Justice strengthens the community by promoting The
Reverend Dr. Martin Luther King's legacy of love, equality, peace, and civil rights. We
celebrate diversity and embrace the ideals of inclusion and equity. Through nonviolent
direct action, we strive for social justice and positive change with emphasis on civic action,
education, and community events and service.

The Hilton Head MLK Committee for Justice was formed in the mid 1980’s with the same
goal of promoting and memorializing Dr. King’s legacy. Our main purpose back then was
organizing and executing the MLK Jr. Day parade each January. Over the next two
decades this grew to include the Ecumenical All-Faith Service the preceding Thursday and
a program after the parade with various speakers, including local students and Gullah
leaders. In the 2010’s our event calendar grew to include a special Shabbat Service and a
community luncheon on Monday following the parade and program. In 2023, we added
youth-focused events like Career Day for local high school students and a Children’s Day
partnership with the Boys and Girls Club. In 2024, we are adding a cultural enrichment
event, a play focused on African American and Gullah history by the Gullah Kinfolks. We
plan to incorporate these new events into the MLK Month of Events for 2024 and beyond.

1.

B.
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We are a fund housed within the Community Foundation of Lowcountry and therefore
share their 501c3 status and use their IRS tax forms as our financial documents.

Describe in detail how the requested grant funding would be used? (250 words or less)

We will use $2500 to partially fund our Gullah Kinfolks event. The Gullah Kinfolks are
creating a custom play for our organization detailing African American and Gullah history
from arrival in America and slavery through Dr. Martin Luther King Jr.’s visit to Beaufort
County during the Civil Rights Era. This a unique event for Hilton Head because the
Gullah Kinfolks typically perform in the Sea Islands of Beaufort. This performance costs
$5500. The venue is being graciously provided to us by Christ Lutheran church for $100.
We will also purchase concessions for $500 to sell at the event to enhance the attendee
experience. So, our total event cost is $6100.

We will use the other $2500 to market our events. In the past most of our marketing
efforts were focused in the areas our volunteers live, Bluffton and Hilton Head. This year
with the Gullah Kinfolks event in particular, we are planning to expand our marketing
efforts into Port Royal, City of Beaufort, Savannah, and Charleston. We will use $1500 to
place radio ads for the local 103.1 station and two local stations in Savannah and
Charleston. We will use $500 to boost posts on our Facebook page to targeted audiences
in the aforementioned locations. We will use $500 to support print marketing efforts in
local publications, such as the Island Packet and Beaufort Gazette.

2.

What impact would partial funding have on the activities, if full funding were not received? What
would the organization change to account for partial funding? (100 words or less)

We will still host all of our events. In the past we have been fully funded by soliciting
donations from both individuals and businesses. The major difference is that without
funding we will have less opportunity to focus on marketing our events. We are a
completely volunteer based organization and our volunteers’ time will need to be focused
on soliciting donations and sponsorships instead of marketing events and attracting
visitors.

3.

What is expected economic impact and benefit to the Island's tourism? (100 words or less)

Two of our many events during our MLK Month of Events will have the most economic
benefit to the Island’s tourism, the Gullah Kinfolks play and Dine and Dance. We expect
that both our Gullah Kinfolks play and Dine and Dance will bring visitors and tourists to the
island for an evening event. Many of these visitors and tourists will stay in hotels after the

4.
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event. We are only providing light refreshments for the Gullah Kinfolks, so we expect
attendees will “make a night of it” and dine at local restaurants before or after the event.

In order to comply with the State's Tourism Expenditure Reveiw Committee annual reporting
requirements, please classify your current grant request into the following authorized
categories: 

1 - Destination Advertising/Promotion
Advertising and promotion of tourism so as to develop and increase tourist attendence
through the generation of publicity.

50  %

2 - Tourism-Related Events
Promotion of the arts and cultural events.

50 %

3 - Tourism-Related Facilities
Construction, maintenance and operation of facilities for civic and cultural activities
including construction and maintenance of access and other nearby roads and utilities for
the facilities.

0 %

4 - Tourism-Related Public Services
The criminal justice system, law enforcement, fire protection, solid waste collection and
health facilities when required to serve tourists and tourist facilities. This is based on the
estimated percentage of costs directly attributed to tourist. Also includes public facilities
such as restrooms, dressing rooms, parks and parking lots.

0 %

5 - Tourist Public Transportation
Tourist shuttle transportation.

0 %

6 - Waterfront Erosion/Control/Repair
Control and repair of waterfront erosion.

0 %

7 - Operation of Visitor Information Centers
Operating visitor information centers.

0 %

Total: 100 %

5.

If not covered elsewhere in the application, please describe (a) how the organization will
collaborate with other organizations to enhance tourism efforts, and (b) provide a venue or service
not otherwise available to visitors to the Town of Hilton Head Island.  (250 words or less)

A. We currently collaborate and cross-promote our events with Heritage Library,
Mitchellville Freedom Park, the Gullah Heritage Corridor, and the Gullah Museum. We will
initiate collaborations with the Town of Hilton Office of Cultural Affairs and the Hilton
Head/Bluffton Chamber of Commerce.  

B. We leverage our spending by advertising in as many free outlets as possible.
Especially in the literature and physical locations of our collaborators.

C. We are the most comprehensive provider of Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. focused events
on Hilton Head. We host the only parade in his honor. We are also the only organization
hosting a Gullah Kinfolks event on the island.

6.
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Additional comments. (250 words or less)7.

FUNDING:

Please describe how the organization is currently funded. (100 words or less)

Our organization is currently funded by ticket sales and donations from individuals and
businesses, including local business sponsorship of events. We have also received
donations from the Community Foundation of the Lowcountry. This is our first year
soliciting grants from local organizations, such as the Bargain Box and the Hargray
Foundation. We are a fund managed by the Community Foundation of the Lowcountry. 

1.

Please also estimate, as a percentage, the source of the organization's total annual funding.

Government Sources 60
Private Contributions, Donations
and Grants

Corporate Support, Sponsors Membership, Dues, Subscriptions

40
Ticket Sales, or Sales
and Services

Other

2.

Has the organization requested other ATAX or any other funding from other public sources or
organizations?
  Yes                No    X  

If so, please list top 3 sources and amounts.

3.

C.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:

Fiscal Year Disclosure:   Start Month:  July      End Month:  June 

Financial Statement Requirements:

The upcoming fiscal year's operating budget for the organization.

Budget Provided: Yes

1.

The previous two fiscal years and current year-to-date profit and loss reports for the2.

D.
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organization.

Current fiscal year Profit Loss Report Provided: Yes

Previous fiscal year Profit Loss Reports Provided:

2021- Previous FY 1
2020- Previous FY 2

The previous two fiscal years and current year-to-date balance sheets.

Current fiscal year Balance Sheet Provided: Yes

Previous fiscal year Balanace Sheets Provided:

2021 - Previous FY 1

2020 - Previous FY 2

3.

The previous two years and current year IRS Form 990 or 990T.

Current year IRS Form 990 or 990T Provided: Yes

Previous IRS Form 990 or 990T Years Provided:

2021 - Previous FY 1

2020 - Previous FY 2

4.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND PROCEDURES:

Provide a copy of the official minutes wherein the organization approves the submission of this
application.

An official set of minutes have been attached to this application.

1.

Indicate whether your organiztion follows Town procurement guidelines or has its own
procurement guidelines which are utilized and followed in the expenditue of ATAX grant funds.

Follow Town procurement guidelines
Utilize and follow organization's own procurement guidelines
Our organization does not have or follow procurement guidelines 

2.

E.

MEASURING EFFECTIVENESS:

If you received 2022 or 2023 HHI ATAX funds

List any ATAX award amounts received in 2022 and/or 2023.1.

F.
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How were the ATAX fundsused?  To what extent were the objectives achieved? The ATAX
Effectiveness Measurement spreadsheet available in the application portal will show the
numerics. Use the space below for verbal comments.  (200 words or less)

We did not receive funds in 2022 or 2023

2.

What impact did this have on the success of the organization/event and how did it benefit the
community?  (200 words or less)

3.

How does the organization measure the effectiveness of both the overall activity and of individual
programs?  (200 words or less)

4.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Provide an executive summary using the "ATAX Effectiveness Measurement" form provided via the link
on the left, or by utilizing the text area provided below to report uses of the organization's prior ATAX
grant, if applicable. If creating your own format, please refer to the "ATAX Effectiveness Measurement"
form and use the criteria as a guideline in developing your executive summary below.  (1300 words or less)

G.

Signature: Galen Miller

Title/Position: Chairman of the Board

Mailing Address: PO Box 21114, Hilton Head, SC 29925

Email Address: galenmiller68@gmail.com
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Office Phone Number: 843-290-2984

Home Phone Number: 843-290-2984
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2023 2024

Dine and Dance@USC-B

Security $1,225.00 $1,225.00

DJ $400.00 $600.00

Band $1,500.00 $0.00

Backdrop $535.00 $535.00

Decorations $1,000.00 $1,000.00

Catering $6,321.00 $7,000.00

$10,981.00 $10,360.00

2023 2024

Career Day

Printing (flyers)

2023 2024

Ecumenical service-Thursday

Collection- $221.00 ??

(1/2 donated to host)

Friday-Talent celebration

Talent celebration

Saturday

Breakfast

Sam's (Marc) $80.22

2023 2024

Monday's Program

Printing $71.72 $350.00

Plaque $153.52 $160.00

HHI plaques x3



Youth gift cards $50.00

Choir director $100.00 $100.00

$375.24 $610.00

2023 2024

Monday's Lunch

Melly Mel's $3,000.00 $4,000.00

Drinks $200.00 $200.00

cleanup donation $50.00

Sponsor poster $40.74 $50.00

Extra food $331.72 $0.00

$3,572.46 $4,300.00

2023 2024

Children's Day

Food/drink $730.04 $1,400.00

gifts $743.98 $1,000.00

materials/supplies $678.17 $1,000.00

music $225.00 $350.00

bouncy house $284.62 $350.00

Gifts cards $190.00 $200.00

$2,851.81 $4,300.00

% of total $17,860.73

D&D 61

Career 0

Ecumenical 0

Shabbat 0

Breakfast 0.4

Monday program 2.1

Monday lunch 20

Children's Day 16

99.5

**This budget was prepared before the addition of the Gullah Kinfolk 
event
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Directors  
The Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization  
Hilton Head Island, South Carolina 
 
Opinion  
We have audited the combined financial statements of The Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, 
Inc. & Supporting Organization (the “Foundation”), which comprise the combined statement of financial 
position as of June 30, 2022, and the related combined statements of activities and changes in net assets 
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the combined financial statements. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying combined financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Foundation as of June 30, 2022, and the results of their operations and their 
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (“GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audits of the Combined Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
required to be independent of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Prior Period Financial Statements 
The combined financial statements of the Foundation, before they were restated for the matter discussed 
in Note 10, were audited by other auditors, and their report thereon, dated October 8, 2021, expressed 
an unmodified opinion. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.  

Responsibilities of Management for the Combined Financial Statements  
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of combined financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the combined financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation’s 
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the combined financial statements 
are available to be issued. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Combined Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute 
assurance, and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material 
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user based on the combined financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the combined financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
combined financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

 
 
Greenville, SC 
November 21, 2022 
 

 
 



Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2022

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 2,837,567$           
Pledges receivable, net 140,000                
Assets held - charitable remainder trusts 2,045,994             
Investments 80,857,150           
Property and equipment, net 249,055                
Other assets 43,213                  

Total assets 86,172,979$         

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 145,102$              
Grants payable 132,450                
Annuities obligation 1,675,645             
Due to other organizations - agency funds 3,074,504             

Total liabilities 5,027,701             

Net assets:
Net assets without restrictions 81,005,278           
Net assets with restrictions 140,000                

Total net assets 81,145,278           

Total liabilities and net assets 86,172,979$         

See accompanying notes. 3



Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statement of Activities and Change in Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenues, gains (losses) and other support:
Contributions received 24,174,493$         
Loss on investments, net (13,131,335)          
Rental income 16,266                  
Change in value of split-interest agreements (349,865)               
Other 430,255                

Total revenues, gains (losses) and other support 11,139,814           

Expenses:
Grants paid 8,313,448             
Program expenses 1,179,141             
Salaries and benefits 1,104,007             
Professional and administrative fees 475,640                
Supplies and other 380,335                
Fundraising and development 59,353                  
Depreciation 46,619                  

Total expenses 11,558,543           

Change in net assets (418,729)               

Net assets, beginning of year, as restated 81,564,007           

Net assets at end of year 81,145,278$         

See accompanying notes. 4



Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Cash flows provided by operating activities: 
Change in net assets (418,729)$              
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided

by operating activities:
Depreciation 46,619                   
Loss on investments 15,631,978            
Change in value of split-interest agreements 349,865                 
Net change in operating assets and liabilities:

Pledges receivable, net 37,530                   
Other assets (11,438)                  
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 73,530                   
Grants payable 69,950                   
Due to other organizations - agency funds (585,037)                

Net cash provided by operating activities 15,194,268            

Cash flows from investing activities:
Change in assets held - charitable remainder trust 93,278                   
Proceeds from sale of investments 3,567,909              
Purchases of investments (20,078,269)           

Net cash used by investing activities (16,417,082)           

Cash flows from financing activities:
Changes in annuity obligations 258,844                 

Net cash provided by financing activities 258,844                 

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (963,970)                

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,801,537              

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 2,837,567$            

See accompanying notes. 5



The Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization 
Notes to the Combined Financial Statements 
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Notes to the Combined Financial Statements 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Nature of Organization 

This summary of significant accounting policies of the Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. (“CFL”) and 
its Supporting Organization, the Jim and Margaret Krum Foundation, Inc. (collectively, the “Foundation”) is 
presented to assist in the understanding of the combined financial statements. The combined financial statements 
and notes are representations of the Foundation’s management, who are responsible for their integrity and 
objectivity. These accounting policies conform with the generally accepted accounting principles in the United States 
of America (“GAAP”) and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the combined financial statements. 

Organization and nature of activities  

Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. is a community foundation and is governed by a board of private 
citizens from its service area. The Board of Directors of Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. elects the 
directors and appoints the President/CEO of the Hilton Head Island Foundation, LLC. The purpose of Hilton Head 
Island Foundation, LLC is to accept gifts of real property on behalf of Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, 
Inc. The purpose of Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. is to serve the charitable needs and interests 
of the residents of four South Carolina counties including Beaufort, Colleton, Hampton and Jasper. 

The Hilton Head Island Foundation, LLC (“HHIF”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the CFL. 

The Jim and Margaret Krum Foundation, Inc. will further the Foundation’s exempt purposes by making grants to 
organizations which are, or could be, supported by the Foundation consistent with its own charitable purposes. 

Basis of Presentation  

The accompanying combined financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with GAAP.  

Combined Financial Statement Preparation 

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, net assets and revenues, expenses, gains and losses 
are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of combined financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the combined financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Concentrations of credit and market risk 

Financial instruments that potentially expose the Foundation to concentrations of credit and market risk consist 
primarily of cash and investments. Cash equivalents are maintained at high-quality financial institutions. The 
Foundation has not experienced any losses on its cash equivalents. Management monitors the risk of exposure to 
loss through monitoring the performance of the financial institutions through publicly available rating agencies.  

Management believes that the Foundation’s investments do not represent significant concentrations of market risk 
because the Foundation’s investment portfolio is adequately diversified among issuers and management believes 
that the Foundation has the ability to hold its investment portfolio during periods of temporary market declines. 

Income Taxes 

The Foundation has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service as a charitable organization as described in 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is exempt from federal income taxes pursuant to Section 
509(a)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the accompanying 
combined financial statements. The Foundation has determined that it does not have any material unrecognized 
tax benefits or obligations as of June 30, 2022.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Foundation considers highly liquid investments without restrictions with an initial maturity of three months or 
less to be cash equivalents. The Foundation’s deposits in each bank are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (“FDIC”). It is management’s opinion that the Foundation is not exposed to any significant credit risk 
related to cash.  

Pledges Receivable 

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give that, in substance, is unconditional. 
Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions 
depending on the nature of the restrictions. Unconditional promises to give (pledges) are stated net of an allowance 
for doubtful accounts. Pledges are periodically evaluated for collectability based on management's assessment of 
the collectability of each pledge. Unconditional promises to give due in subsequent years are reported at the present 
value of their net realizable value, using discounted rates applicable to the years in which the promises are to be 
received. 

Assets held – charitable remainder trusts 

The Foundation administer various charitable trusts. A charitable remainder trust provides for the payment of 
distributions to designated beneficiaries over the trust’s term (usually the designated beneficiary’s lifetime). At the 
end of the trust’s term, the remaining assets are available for the Foundation’s use.  

The trusts are valued at the fair value of the underlying investments. The obligation to make payments to the trust 
beneficiaries is reported as obligations under annuities obligation. Annually, the obligation is adjusted for changes 
in the value of the trust assets. The discount rate used to determine the present value is consistent with the rate of 
return from the trusts. Changes in the value are included on the combined statement of activities as increases and 
decreases to change in value of trust agreements.  
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Investments 

Investments consist of various mutual funds, equity investments, fixed income investments, alternative investments 
and other assets and are reported at fair market value.  

Property and equipment 

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line 
method over estimated useful lives, ranging from three to twenty-five years.  

Annuity obligations 

Annuity obligations represent amounts due to donors under trust agreements. Discount rates and actuarial 
assumptions vary by type of agreement.  

Funds held for others – agency funds  

Funds held for others – agency funds represent amounts owed to other organizations related to assets held by the 
Foundation in a purely custodial capacity. These other organizations specify the Foundation to distribute funds as 
requested. As these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party, and cannot be used to address activities 
or obligations of the Foundation, revenues and expenses are not recorded on the combined statement of activities 
and are included in due to other organizations – agency funds.  

Net Assets 

The Foundation’s net assets and its support and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on 
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions using two classifications: without donor restrictions and with 
donor restrictions. Most contributions, including those with donor-imposed restrictions, are subject to the variance 
power established by the Foundation’s governing documents. The variance power allows the Board of Directors to 
modify donor instructions that are incapable of fulfillment or inconsistent with the charitable needs of the community. 
As a result of the variance power, most contributions are classified as net assets without donor restrictions for 
financial statement purposes. 

Contributions and recognition of donor restrictions 

Contributions received are recorded as without donor restriction or with donor restriction depending on the existence 
and/or nature of any donor restrictions, including consideration around variance power. 

Net assets with donor restrictions are those which are restricted as to time or purpose of use, and include donor 
restricted endowments. When donor restrictions expire, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or a purpose 
restriction is fulfilled, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and 
reported on the combined statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. However, if the restriction 
expires during the same accounting period in which the gift was received, the contribution is reported as an increase 
in net assets without donor restrictions. 

Net assets without donor restrictions are funds over which the Board of Directors has discretionary control and are 
available for grant making and other purposes. These include board-designated purposes and endowments. 

Donated Assets 

Donated marketable securities and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair 
values at the date of donation. 
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2. Investments 

Investments are comprised of the following as of June 30, 2022:  

Mutual funds and equities   $ 36,779,952 
Alternative investments    32,091,114 
Fixed income    11,981,084 
Other assets    5,000 
 
      $ 80,857,150 
 
Investment income (loss) is comprised of the following for the year ended June 30, 2022: 

Realized losses, net   $ (1,000) 
Unrealized losses, net    (15,630,978) 
Dividends and interest, net of fees    2,500,643 
 
      $ (13,131,335) 

3. Fair Value of Financial Instruments  

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each classification within the 
combined financial statements:  

 Investments – The fair value of debt and equity security investments are estimated based on quoted 
market prices when available. For other investments for which there are no quoted market prices, a 
reasonable estimate of fair value was made based upon readily available information. Alternative 
investments are valued at fair market value or net asset value, as determined by the managers of the 
investments  as reported to them by the general partner of the underlying funds or partnerships. 

 Assets held – charitable remainder trust – The fair value of assets held in trust are estimated based on 
quoted market prices when available. 

 Annuity obligations – These liabilities are carried at actuarially determined present value, which 
approximate fair value.  

When quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other 
valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount 
rate and estimates of future cash flows. In that regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by 
comparison to independent markets and, in many cases could not be realized in immediate settlement of the 
instrument.  

Fair value as defined under generally accepted accounting principles is an exit price, representing the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date.  
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Generally accepted accounting principles establish a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used 
in measuring fair value. These tiers include:  

 Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets. 
 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly 

observable.  
 Level 3: Unobservable inputs about which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity 

to develop its own assumptions. 
 

Assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the 
use of unobservable inputs. There were no changes during the year ended June 30, 2022 to the Foundation’s 
valuation techniques used to measure asset and liability fair values on a recurring basis. 

The methods used may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective 
of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Foundation believes its valuation methods are appropriate and 
consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair 
value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date. 

The methods used may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective 
of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Foundation believes its valuation methods are appropriate and 
consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair 
value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date. 

     Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2022 Using  
Description            (Level 1)   (Level 2)   (Level 3)  
Financial assets: 
Investments  $ 48,766,036 $ 48,766,036 $ - $ - 
Assets held – charitable remainder trusts  2,045,994     -  -  2,045,994 
     50,812,030 $ 48,766,036 $ - $ 2,045,994 
Investments at NAV (a)  32,091,114       
Total investments at fair value $ 82,903,144 
 
Financial liabilities: 
Annuities obligation $ 1,675,645 $ - $ - $ 1,675,645 
 

(a) In accordance with Topic 820, certain investments that were measured at net asset value (“NAV”) per 
share (or its equivalent) have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts 
presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the line items 
presented on the combined statements of financial position. 

There were no transfers between levels for the year ended June 30, 2022.  

Changes in Level 3 fair value measurements for assets held in trust and annuities using significant unobservable 
inputs were as follows: 

 Ending balance – June 30, 2021               $ 1,072,336 
 Change in assets held in trust and annuities        (701,987) 
 Ending balance – June 30, 2022         $ 370,349 
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The following table summarizes investments for which fair value is measured using the NAV per share practical 
expedient as of June 30, 2022:  

     Fair Value at         Redemption 
      June 30,   Unfunded   Redemption   Notice 
     2022   Commitments   Restrictions   Period  
 
 FEG Select Core   $ 5,414,580  None   None   5 days 
    FEG Select Plus    5,473,367  None   None   5 days 
    FEG Select International Equity    2,927,988  None   None   5 days 
    FEG Select Strut US    3,356,999  None   Monthly   5 days 
    FEG Select Domestic II    2,377,862  None   Quarterly   30 days 
 FEG Select Domestic I    2,113,689  None   Monthly   60 days 
 FEG International Equity Series I    2,974,789  None   Monthly   30 days 
 FEG Emerging Markets Series II    1,410,158  None   Monthly   30 days 
    FEG Absolute Access Fund    32,925  None   None   None 
 FEG Private Opportunities Fund IV          4,017,474  $10,980,000   (b)   (b) 
 FEG Private Opportunities Fund III    1,991,283  $125,000   (b)   (b)  
      $ 32,091,114  

(b) The fund manager determines the amount, timing and form of all distributions.  

4. Pledges Receivable 

The Foundation’s pledges receivable consist of the following as of June 30: 

Receivable in less than one year   $ - 
Receivable in one to five years    - 
Receivable in six or more years    300,000 
Pledges receivable, gross    300,000 
Less: discount    (160,000) 
Pledges receivable, net   $           140,000 

5. Property and Equipment 

Land      $ 160,000 
Building      952,303 
Furniture and equipment    129,353 
Total property and equipment    1,241,656 
Less accumulated depreciation     (992,601) 
 
Property and equipment, net   $ 249,055 
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6. Without Donor Restricted Net Assets  

The Foundation’s net assets without donor restrictions are classified as follows:  

Unrestricted (Discretionary) – The Foundation’s unrestricted funds are not designated for a specific 
charitable beneficiary. These funds are disbursed at the discretion of the Foundation’s Board of Directors 
in response to requests from nonprofit organizations and based on an assessment of the most pressing 
needs. Unrestricted funds are also used to pay administrative expenses. 
 
Field-of-Interest – Field-of-Interest Funds have been created to support a specific field- of-interest, such as 
health or education, or a specific geographic area, such as Jasper County or the Greater Bluffton 
Community. The funds created by giving circles are also funds of this type. 
 
Donor-Advised – Donor-Advised Funds are created by donors who wish to remain active in their 
philanthropy and have access to the Foundation’s professional advice and management. Donors may 
suggest charitable distributions from funds they have established, although the Foundation’s Board of 
Directors has final authority to approve or deny all such grants.  
 
Designated – Designated funds, subject to variance power, have been established by a donor to provide 
grants to a specific charitable agency or for a specific charitable purpose. The Board of Directors accepts 
the donor’s designation as long as the agency or purpose continues to serve the public interest. Scholarship 
funds and project funds are included in this category. 

The balances of these internally imposed restrictions are as follows: 

   Endowed    Non-endowed  Total  
Net Assets – Spendable  $ 4,375,093 $ 19,920,079 $ 24,295,172 
Net Assets – accumulated earnings  523,612  -  523,612 
Net Assets – nonspendable  56,186,494  -  56,186,494 
    $ 61,085,199 $ 19,920,079 $ 81,005,278 

7. Endowment Funds 

The Foundation’s endowment consists of funds established for purposes of funds designated by the Board to 
function as endowments. There were no donor-restricted endowment funds at June 30, 2022 as a result of the 
contributions received subject to variance power.  

Interpretation of Relevant Law 
 
The Board of the Foundation has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act of 2006 
(the “Act”) adopted in South Carolina in 2008 as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of 
the gift date. As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation’s board-designated endowment includes (a) the 
original value of gifts donated, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to be held in perpetuity, and (c) 
accumulations to the gifts held in perpetuity made in accordance with the direction of the applicable designation at 
the time the accumulation is added to the fund. 
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In accordance with the Act, the Foundation considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate 
or accumulate board-designated endowment funds: 

 The duration and preservation of the fund 
 The purposes of the Foundation and the endowment fund 
 General economic conditions 
 The possible effect of inflation and deflation 
 The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments 
 Other resources of the Foundation 
 The investment policy of the Foundation 

Endowment net assets consist of the following at June 30, 2022: 

 Without Donor  With Donor 
   Restrictions  Restrictions   Total  

Board designated endowment funds $ 61,085,199 $ - $ 61,085,199 

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2022 is as follows: 

 Without Donor  With Donor 
   Restrictions    Restrictions   Total  
Endowment net assets, June 30, 2021 $ 59,406,136 $ - $ 59,406,136 
   Contributions received  17,083,731  -  17,083,731 
   Other revenue  80,357  -  80,357 
   Loss on investments, net  (10,861,318)  -  (10,861,318) 
   Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditures  (4,623,707)  -  (4,626,707) 
Endowment net assets, June 30, 2022 $ 61,085,199 $ - $ 61,085,199 
 
Return Objectives and Risk Parameters 
 
The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a 
predictable stream of funding to programs while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. 
Under this policy, as approved by the Board, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to 
produce results that exceed the price and yield results of various benchmarks while assuming a moderate level of 
investment risk.  

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives 

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Foundation relies on a total return strategy in which investment 
returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and 
dividends). The Foundation targets a diversified asset allocation that places emphasis on its long-term objectives 
within prudent risk constraints. The Foundation’s asset allocation may vary from the target ratio depending on the 
Foundation’s evaluation of overall market conditions. 

Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy 

The Foundation has adopted a policy whereby it limits the amount of spending that may be utilized for grant 
purposes from endowments to 4.5% of the average daily balance of investments over the prior twenty quarters. 
This policy enables the Foundation to preserve and strengthen its investment base for the future. 
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8. Functional Allocation of Expenses  

The method used to allocate costs to program and support functions, which primarily affects salaries and related 
expenses, is based upon employee time spent on programs versus support services. Other expenses are classified 
based upon the assessment by management of relevant programs supported by the expenses incurred or 
supporting functions benefited. 
 
Expenses presented on a functional basis for the year ended June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

  Programs  
  Donor   Field of       Other    
  Advised   Interest     Funds &      Program  
  Funds   Funds   Programs     Subtotals  
 
Grants paid  $ 2,164,658 $ 3,855,477 $ 2,281,186 $ 8,301,321 
Program expenses  2,500  715,294  461,347  1,179,141 
Salaries and benefits  59,391  66,218  204,028  329,637 
Professional and administrative fees  23,379  39,491  128,141  191,011 
Supplies and other  -  2,335  339,998  342,333 
Fundraising and development  -  59,353  -  59,353 
Depreciation  -  -      -  - 
 
    $  2,249,928  $ 4,738,168 $ 3,414,700 $ 10,402,796 
 
 
                   Supporting Activities                        
 Management     Supporting        Total  
  & General   Fundraising     Subtotal     Expenses  
 
Grants paid  $ 12,127 $ - $ 12,127 $ 8,313,448 
Program expenses  -  -  -  1,179,141 
Salaries and benefits  559,804  214,566  774,370  1,104,007 
Professional and administrative fees  166,117  118,512  284,629  475,640 
Supplies and other  38,002  -  38,002  380,335 
Fundraising and development  -  -  -  59,353 
Depreciation   46,619  -  46,619   46,619 
 
    $  822,669  $ 333,078 $ 1,155,747 $ 11,558,543 
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Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statements of Financial Position
As of June 30,

2021 2020
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,801,537 3,465,628   
Pledges and grants receivable, net 177,530 177,530      
Assets held - charitable remainder trusts 2,489,137 2,084,283   
Investments 78,538,369 61,114,294 
Capital Counsel Investments 1,440,399 1,203,453   
Property and equipment, net 295,674 326,819      
Other assets 31,775 5,289          

Total Assets 86,774,421 68,377,296 

Liabilities and net assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 71,572 242,588      
Grants payable 1,145,863 810,049      
Annuities payable 1,416,801 1,438,492   
Funds held for others - agency funds 1,179,304 2,847,890   

Total Liabilities 3,813,540 5,339,019   

Net assets without donor restrictions 82,960,881 63,038,277 
Net assets with donor restrictions 0 0

Total Net Assets 82,960,881 63,038,277 
Total liabilities and net assets 86,774,421 68,377,296 

See Accountants' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
2



Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statements of Activities and Change in Net Assets
For the Years Ended June 30,

2021 2020

Income-unrestricted  
Contributions received 8,253,890 6,609,496            
Net realized gains/losses (293,663) (485,074)              
Net unrealized gains/losses 21,949,909 2,082,454            
Investment income 1,271,707 1,460,489            
Rental income 14,100 16,100                 
Other 1,128,485 792,974               

Total Revenues 32,324,428 10,476,439          

General and administrative expenses-unrestricted
Grants paid 7,173,170 7,310,262            
Program expenses 919,732 929,353               
Salaries and benefits 1,125,010 1,018,835            
Professional and administrative fees 1,113,696 1,033,259            
Supplies and other 185,172 151,472               
Fundraising 81,424 93,314                 
Changes in value of split interest agreements 87,120 82,915                 
Changes in funds held for others 1,668,586 903,951               
Depreciation 47,914 44,889                 

Total Expenses 12,401,824 11,568,250          

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 19,922,604 (1,091,811)           

Increase (decrease) in net assets 19,922,604 (1,091,811)           

Net assets beginning of year 63,038,277 64,130,088          

Net assets at end of year 82,960,881 63,038,277          

See Accountants' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
3



Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statements of Cash Flow
For the Years Ended June 30,

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from contributions 8,253,890$      6,688,787$     
Cash received for rental income 14,100 16,100
Cash received from interest and dividend income 1,271,707 1,460,489
Cash received from other 1,128,485 794,820
Cash paid for grants (6,837,356) (7,573,325)
Cash paid for general, program, and administrative expenses (3,541,112) (2,973,680)
Cash paid for fundraising (81,424) (93,314)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 208,290 (1,680,123)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net purchases and sales of investments 127,619 1,998,645

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 127,619 1,998,645

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 0 0

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 335,909 318,522

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,465,628 3,147,106

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 3,801,537$      3,465,628$     

See Accountants' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
4
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The combined financial statements include the accounts of the Community Foundation of the 
Lowcountry, Inc. (“CFL”) and its Supporting Organization, the Jim and Margaret Krum 
Foundation, Inc., collectively referred to as the “Foundation”.  All balances and transactions 
between the two entities have been eliminated in combination. 
 
The Hilton Head Island Foundation, LLC (“HHIF”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the CFL. 
 
Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. is a community foundation and is governed by a 
board of private citizens from its service area. The Board of Directors of Community Foundation 
of the Lowcountry, Inc. elects the directors and appoints the President/CEO of the Hilton Head 
Island Foundation, LLC. The purpose of Hilton Head Island Foundation, LLC is to accept gifts of 
real property on behalf of Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. and its many funds 
and its Supporting Organization. The purpose of Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. 
is to serve the charitable needs and interests of the residents of four South Carolina counties 
including Beaufort, Colleton, Hampton and Jasper. 

The Jim and Margaret Krum Foundation, Inc. will further the CFL’s exempt purposes by making 
grants directly to the Foundation and to organizations which are, or could be, supported by the 
Foundation consistent with its own charitable purposes. 
 
BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
The combined financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and 
accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.  
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION 
 
The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as codified by the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board.  In accordance with GAAP, the Foundation reports information 
regarding its net assets and activities as with donor restrictions or without donor restrictions, 
depending on the existence and/or nature of any external restrictions.  Currently, the Foundation 
has no restricted assets.  
 
ESTIMATES 
 
The preparation of combined financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the combined financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates.  
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INCOME TAXES 
 
The Internal Revenue Service has determined that the Foundation is exempt from income taxes 
as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue code and is classified 
as a public charity under Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents presented in the statements of financial position and cash flows 
represent cash on hand and demand deposits at financial institutions with an original maturity of 
three months or less.  
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments in debt and equity securities are reported at fair market value, except for short-term 
highly liquid investments that have a remaining maturity at the time they are purchased of one 
year or less.  These investments are carried at amortized cost.  Included in investments are 
cash and cash equivalents on deposit with money managers.  The fair value is estimated by 
external investment managers, as market values are not readily ascertainable.  These estimates 
involve assumptions and estimation methods that are reviewed by management.  Actual 
valuations could differ from those estimates. 
 
Interest, dividends, and gains and losses, both realized and unrealized, on investments are 
included in the Combined Statements of Activities and Change in Net Assets.  
 
CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
Contributions are recorded at their estimated fair value and are considered to be available for 
unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.  Amounts received that are 
designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for specific purposes are reported as 
temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support that increases those net asset classes. 
 
PLEDGES RECEIVABLE 
 
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be received within one year are recorded at 
estimated net realizable value.  Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be received 
in future years are recorded at the present value of their estimated future cash flows.  The 
discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-free interest rates for United States 
government securities having maturities that correspond to the years in which the promises are 
expected to be received.  
 
Amortization of discounts is included in contribution revenue.  Conditional promises to give are 
not included as support until the conditions are substantially met.   
 
The Foundation uses the allowance method to determine the uncollectible portion of 
unconditional promises to give.  The allowance to uncollectible contributions is based upon 
management’s estimates, including such factors as, overall economic conditions, current and 
historical loss experience, and recent contribution activity.  
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Property and equipment are reported at cost, if purchased, or fair value at the date of donation.  
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets, 
ranging from three to twenty-five years. 
 
GRANTS PAYABLE 
 
Grants are recorded when specifically authorized by the Board of Directors of the Foundation 
and when the grant award is communicated to the grantee. 
 
ANNUITIES PAYABLE 
 
The Foundation has received certain unconditional promises to provide the future contributions 
in the form of deferred giving arrangements, including charitable remainder annuity trusts, 
charitable remainder unitrusts, and pooled income funds.  The various deferred giving 
agreements stipulate the payment of stated annuity amounts, as well as the requirements for 
the eventual use of the principal of the donated funds.  
 
FUNDS HELD FOR OTHERS 
 
Funds held for others as agency funds represent component funds established by unaffiliated 
not-for-profit organizations for their own benefit.  
 
DONATED ASSETS 
 
Donated marketable securities and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at 
their estimated fair values at the date of donation.  
 
DONATED SERVICES 
 
No amounts have been reflected in the combined financial statements for donated services.  
The Foundation pays for most services requiring specific expertise.  However, many individuals 
volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Foundation with specific 
programs and various committee assignments. 
 
NET ASSETS 
 
The Foundation’s net assets and its support and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are 
classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions using two 
classifications: unrestricted and temporarily restricted.  Most contributions, including those with 
donor-imposed restrictions, are subject to the variance power established by the Foundation’s 
governing documents.  The variance power allows the Board of Directors to modify donor 
instructions that are incapable of fulfillment or inconsistent with the charitable needs of the 
community.  As a result of the variance power, most contributions are classified as net assets 
without donor restrictions for financial statement purposes.   
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SPLIT-INTEREST AGREEMENTS 
 
The Foundation administers various charitable remainder trusts and charitable lead trusts.  A 
charitable remainder trust provides for the payment of distributions to designated beneficiaries 
over the trust’s term (usually the designated beneficiary’s lifetime).  At the end of the trust’s 
term, the remaining assets are available for the Foundation’s use.  Under the charitable lead 
trust, the Foundation receives distributions from the trust until the agreement terminates.  At that 
time, the remaining assets of the trust are paid out to the donor or other named beneficiaries.   
 
The fair value of the trusts’ assets has been included in the Foundation’s Combined Statements 
of Financial Position and a corresponding liability has been recorded to reflect the present value 
of required lifetime payments to the named beneficiaries using a discount rate of 2.6% for the 
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.  A range of 2%-9% has been used in prior periods.   
 
Also, various donors have established trusts with financial institutions, naming the Foundation 
as the beneficiary of these charitable remainder trusts.  Under the terms of the split-interest 
agreements, at the time of the donor’s death, the trusts terminate and trust assets are 
distributed to the Foundation.  Based on donor life expectancy and the use of a discount rate of 
2.6%, the present value of future assets expected to be received by the Foundation is included 
in the Foundation’s Combined Statements of Financial Position.  Changes in the value of the 
assets and amortization of the discount on the estimated present value of future benefits are 
included in the change in value of charitable remainder trusts in the Combined Statements of 
Activities and Change in Net Assets.   
 
SPENDING POLICY 
 
The Foundation has adopted a policy whereby it limits the amount of spending that may be 
utilized for grant purposes from endowments to 4.5% of the average daily balance of 
investments over the prior twenty quarters.  This policy enables the Foundation to preserve and 
strengthen its investment base for the future. 
 
NOTE B – CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK ARISING FROM CASH DEPOSITS IN 
EXCESS OF INSURED LIMITS 
 
The Foundation maintains cash balances at some financial institutions in excess of FDIC 
insured limits from time to time.  Based on the credit rating of these institutions, management 
believes there is no significant credit risk related to deposits. 
 
 
NOTE C – DATE OF MANAGEMENT’S REVIEW 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Foundation has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through October 8, 2021, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued.   
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NOTE D – INVESTMENTS 
 
The carrying amounts of investments at June 30th are included in the Foundation’s Combined 
Statements of Financial Position as follows: 
 
 2021  2020
Assets held – charitable remainder trusts $ 2,489,137 $ 2,084,283
Investments 79,978,768  62,317,747
Total $ 82,467,905 $ 64,402,030
 
Investments at June 30th are classified as follows: 
 
 2021  2020
Marketable Equity Securities $ 66,873,891 $ 49,465,203
Fixed Income 11,165,777 8,719,740
Other 4,428,237 6,217,087
Total $ 82,467,905 $ 64,402,030
 
Net investment gains (losses) are comprised of the following for the years ending June 30th: 
 
 2021  2020
Net realized gains/(losses) $            (293,663)   $                (485,074)  
Net unrealized gains/(losses)         21,949,909       2,082,454
Interest and dividend income         1,271,707               1,460,489   
Total $         22,927,953    $               3,057,869   
 
 
NOTE E – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, 
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, provides the framework for measuring fair value.  
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques 
used to measure fair value.  The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices  
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority 
to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).  The three levels of the fair value hierarchy 
under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows: 
 
Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets 
or liabilities in active markets that the Foundation has the ability to access. 
 
Level 2 – Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 
 

A. Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
B. Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 
C. Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; 
D. Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by 

correlation or other means.  
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If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be observable for 
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.  
 
Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 
 
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on 
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation 
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
 
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.  
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2020 and 2019.   
 
Mutual Funds: Value at the net asset value (NAV) of shares held by the Foundation at year end.  
These typically include investments in marketable equity and fixed income securities.   
 
Money Market Funds: Value based on inputs derived from observable market data based on US 
currency.  
 
The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be 
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.  Furthermore, although the 
Foundation believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market 
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of 
certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting 
date. 
 
The following table sets forth, by level, with the fair value hierarchy, the Foundation’s assets at 
fair value: 
 

 Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2021
  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total
Mutual Funds $ 78,039,668 4,428,237 0  82,467,905
Money Market Funds  3,801,537 0 0  3,801,537
Total assets at fair value $ 81,841,205 4,428,237 0  86,269,442
 
 

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2020
  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total
Mutual Funds $ 58,184,943 $ 6,217,087 $ 0 $ 64,402,030
Money Market Funds  3,465,628 0 0  3,465,628
Total assets at fair value $ 61,650,571 $ 6,217,087 $ 0 $ 67,867,658
 
 
The Foundation did not have any level 3 assets for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.   
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NOTE F – PLEDGES AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE 
 
The Foundation’s pledges and grants receivable consist of the following as of June 30th:  
 
 2021 2020 

Receivable in less than one year $ 0 $ 0 
Receivable in one to five years 0 0 
Receivable in six or more years 300,000 300,000 

Pledges receivable, gross 300,000 300,000 
Less: discount (160,000) (160,000)

Pledges receivable, net 140,000 140,000 
Grants receivable 37,530 37,530

Pledges and Grants receivable, net $ 177,530 $ 177,530

 
 
NOTE G – FIXED ASSETS 
 
Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30th: 
 
 2021 2020
Land $                160,000 $                   160,000
Building                952,304                   944,608
Furniture and equipment                129,353                   120,280
Total property and equipment            1,241,657                 1,224,888
Less: accumulated depreciation                 (945,983)                    (898,069)
Property and equipment, net $             295,674  $                     326,819  
 
 
 
 
NOTE H – OPERATING LEASES 
 
The Foundation leases office space to various tenants at various terms with a cumulative 
annual rental revenue of $14,100 for the year ended June 30, 2021 and $16,100 for the year 
ended June 30, 2020.  
 
The Foundation leases various office equipment from three organizations with payments 
ranging from approximately $1,383 to $13,735 annually, expiring at various times through June 
2021. 
 
Lease expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 amounted to approximately 
$17,295 and $22,746 respectively.   
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NOTE I – EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN 
 
The Foundation sponsors a defined contribution retirement savings plan for all regular, full-time 
employees who are twenty-one years of age and have completed one year of service.  Under 
the plan, employees may contribute up to 15% of their annual compensation.  Participants over 
the age of 50 are eligible to make additional catch up contributions.  The Foundation may also  
contribute a discretionary amount of the participants’ compensation each year.  The Foundation 
contributed approximately $23,596 and $20,463 to the plan during the years ending June 30, 
2021 and 2020, respectively.   
 
 
 
NOTE J – FUND CLASSIFICATION 
 
The activities and balances of the Foundation are classified for internal purposes into the 
following groups: 
 

Unrestricted (Discretionary) – The Foundation’s Unrestricted Funds are not designated 
for a specific charitable beneficiary.  These funds are disbursed at the discretion of the 
Foundation’s Board of Directors in response to requests from nonprofit organizations 
and based on an assessment of the most pressing needs.  Unrestricted funds are also 
used to pay administrative expenses.   

 
Field-of-Interest – Field-of-Interest Funds have been created to support a specific field-
of-interest, such as health or education, or a specific geographic area, such as Jasper 
County or the Greater Bluffton Community.  The funds created by giving circles are also 
funds of this type. 
 
Donor-Advised – Donor-Advised Funds are created by donors who wish to remain active 
in their philanthropy and have access to the Foundation’s professional advice and 
management.  Donors may suggest charitable distributions from funds they have 
established, although the Foundation’s Board of Directors has final authority to approve 
or deny all such grants.  Technically, donor-advised funds are a type of unrestricted 
fund.   
 
Designated – Designated funds have been established by a donor to provide grants to a 
specific charitable agency or for a specific charitable purpose.  The Board of Directors  
accepts the donor’s designation as long as the agency or purpose continues to serve the 
public interest.  Scholarship funds and project funds are included in this category. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION – Most fund types may be established either as endowed 
or non-endowed funds.  Endowed funds are intended to be permanent funds and are 
subject to the Foundation’s spending policy.  Non-endowed funds are intended to be 
spent down over time, and are 100% spendable.  Scholarship funds generally must be 
endowed funds. 
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At June 30th, the balances of these internally imposed restrictions were: 
 
  2021  2020 
Net Assets – spendable $         27,532,207 $           21,823,996
Net Assets – accumulated earnings  14,523,996              2,347,996
Net Assets – nonspendable endowment          40,904,678            38,866,285
Total net assets           82,960,881            63,038,277
 
 
NOTE K – INTERNAL FEES CHARGED TO FUNDS 
  
The Foundation enters into agreements with donors when a fund is established that includes an 
internal administrative fee.  The current fee schedules range from 0.75% to 2.5% of annual 
average daily balance of the market value of the fund based on the type of fund and services 
required.  Minimum administrative fee is $200 annually.   
 
 
NOTE L – EXPENSES BY BOTH NATURAL AND FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION – FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 

 Programs

 

Donor 
Advised 
Funds

Field of 
Interest 
Funds

Other 
Funds & 

Programs  
Program 
Subtotals

    
Salaries & benefits 48,071 52,212 116,631  216,914
Grants & scholarships 2,286,853 2,317,205 2,474,723  7,078,781
Program expenses 0 559,511 359,991  919,502
Professional fees 165,102 80,207 2,414,133  2,659,442
Office, supplies & travel 0 0 11,625  11,625
Fundraising/Development 0 81,424 0  81,424
Total Expenses 2,500,027 3,090,558 5,377,104   10,967,689

 

 Supporting Activities

 
Management 

& General
Fund-

Raising
Supporting 

Subtotal  
Total 

Expenses

    
Salaries & benefits 718,891 179,545 898,436   1,115,350
Grants & scholarships 5,750 0 5,750   7,084,531
Program expenses 230 0 230   919,732
Professional fees 235,172 132,497 367,669   3,027,112
Office, supplies & travel 118,265 0 118,265   129,890
Fundraising/Development 0 43,785 43,785   125,210
Total Expenses 1,078,308 355,828 1,434,136    12,401,824
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The allocation to Program for Salaries and Benefits is figured on 100% of the total salaries and 
benefits for the three Program staff.  The remainder is Management and General Expenses.  
100% of the Development and Donor Services three staff and 50% of the CEO salaries and 
benefits are allocated to Fundraising.  Finance and Marketing are allocated to the Management 
and General Expenses.  Donor Advised Funds and Field of Interest funds are split from the total 
as more than 50% or grant making falls into those two fund types. 
 
NOTE M – LIQUIDITY 
 
The majority of the Foundation’s assets consist of investments in marketable securities.  A 
material portion of these investments are readily tradeable and therefore very liquid assets.  The 
Foundation has more than six times its typical annual expenditures in investments.  Most 
contributions received by the Foundation, including those with donor-imposed restrictions, are 
subject to the variance power established by the Foundation’s governing documents.  Because 
of this variance power, contributions are classified as net assets without donor restrictions for 
financial statement purposes and the Foundation’s investments are therefore available to meet 
its liquidity needs. 
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9. Liquidity 

The Foundation’s management structures its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities 
and other obligations come due. Most contributions received by the Foundation, including those with donor-imposed 
restrictions, are subject to the variance power established by the Foundation’s governing documents. Because of 
this variance power, contributions are classified as net assets without donor restrictions for combined financial 
statement purposes and the Foundation’s investments are therefore available to meet its liquidity needs. 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within 
one year of the combined statement of financial position date, comprise the following as of June 30, 2022: 

 
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 2,837,567 
Investments     80,857,150 
Less: 
  Due to other organizations    (3,074,504) 
 
      $ 80,620,213 

10. Employees’ Retirement Savings Plan 

The Foundation sponsors a defined contribution retirement savings plan for all regular, full-time employees who are 
twenty-one years of age and have completed one year of service. Under the plan, employees may contribute up to 
15% of their annual compensation. Participants over the age of 50 are eligible to make additional catch-up 
contributions. The Foundation may also contribute a discretionary amount of the participants’ compensation each 
year. The Foundation contributed $32,375 to the plan during the year ending June 30, 2022.  

11. Restatement 

During 2022, management determined that the income and expenses associated with amount due to other 
organizations were recorded incorrectly. This resulted in the due to other organizations liability being understated 
and net assets being overstated by approximately $2,480,000. Additionally, management determined that grants 
payable were recorded incorrectly and resulted in an overstatement of grant payable liability and understatement 
of net assets by approximately $1,100,000. Accordingly, an adjustment has been made to beginning net assets as 
of July 1, 2021 to correct this error. The cumulative effect of the correction decreases beginning net assets as of 
July 1, 2021 by approximately $1,380,000.  

12. Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 21, 2022 which is the date the combined financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
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Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statements of Financial Position
As of June 30,

2020 2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,465,628 3,147,106
Pledges and grants receivable, net 177,530 256,821
Assets held - charitable remainder trusts 2,084,283 2,154,299
Investments 61,114,294 63,159,201
Capital Counsel Investments 1,203,453 1,527,330
Property and equipment, net 326,819 367,037
Other assets 5,289 7,135

Total Assets 68,377,296 70,618,929

Liabilities and net assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 242,588 83,349
Grants payable 810,049 1,073,112
Annuities payable 1,438,492 1,578,939
Funds held for others - agency funds 2,847,890 3,753,441

Total Liabilities 5,339,019 6,488,841

Net assets without donor restrictions 63,038,277 64,130,088
Net assets with donor restrictions 0 0

Total Net Assets 63,038,277 64,130,088
Total liabilities and net assets 68,377,296 70,618,929

See Accountants' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
2



Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statements of Activities and Change in Net Assets
For the Years Ended June 30,

2020 2019

Income-unrestricted  
Contributions received 6,609,496 6,421,183
Net realized gains/losses (485,074) (745,706)
Net unrealized gains/losses 2,082,454 1,794,788
Investment income 1,460,489 2,001,649
Rental income 16,100 16,095
Other 792,974 812,878

Total Revenues 10,476,439 10,300,887

General and administrative expenses-unrestricted
Grants paid 7,310,262 7,170,132
Program expenses 929,353 598,100
Salaries and benefits 1,018,835 1,028,240
Professional and administrative fees 1,033,259 1,107,793
Supplies and other 151,472 225,154
Fundraising 93,314 162,205
Changes in value of split interest agreements 82,915 87,812
Changes in funds held for others 903,951 (33,306)
Depreciation 44,889 41,600

Total Expenses 11,568,250 10,387,730

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets (1,091,811) (86,843)

Increase (decrease) in net assets (1,091,811) (86,843)

Net assets beginning of year 64,130,088 64,216,931

Net assets at end of year 63,038,277 64,130,088

See Accountants' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
3



Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statements of Cash Flow
For the Years Ended June 30,

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from contributions 6,688,787$      6,394,289$     
Cash received for rental income 16,100 16,095
Cash received from interest and dividend income 1,460,489 2,001,649
Cash received from other 794,820 812,878
Cash paid for grants (7,573,325) (7,134,138)
Cash paid for general, program, and administrative expenses (2,973,680) (3,003,189)
Cash paid for fundraising (93,314) (162,205)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,680,123) (1,074,621)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net purchases and sales of investments 1,998,645 1,929,951

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,998,645 1,929,951

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 0 0

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 318,522 855,330

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,147,106 2,291,776

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 3,465,628$      3,147,106$     

See Accountants' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
4
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The combined financial statements include the accounts of the Community Foundation of the 
Lowcountry, Inc. (“CFL”) and its Supporting Organization, the Jim and Margaret Krum 
Foundation, Inc., collectively referred to as the “Foundation”.  All balances and transactions 
between the two entities have been eliminated in combination. 
 
The Hilton Head Island Foundation, LLC (“HHIF”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the CFL. 
 
Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. is a community foundation and is governed by a 
board of private citizens from its service area. The Board of Directors of Community Foundation 
of the Lowcountry, Inc. elects the directors and appoints the President/CEO of the Hilton Head 
Island Foundation, LLC. The purpose of Hilton Head Island Foundation, LLC is to accept gifts of 
real property on behalf of Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. and its many funds 
and its Supporting Organization. The purpose of Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. 
is to serve the charitable needs and interests of the residents of four South Carolina counties 
including Beaufort, Colleton, Hampton and Jasper. 

The Jim and Margaret Krum Foundation, Inc. will further the CFL’s exempt purposes by making 
grants directly to the Foundation and to organizations which are, or could be, supported by the 
Foundation consistent with its own charitable purposes. 
 
BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
The combined financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and 
accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.  
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION 
 
The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as codified by the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board.  In accordance with GAAP, the Foundation reports information 
regarding its net assets and activities as with donor restrictions or without donor restrictions, 
depending on the existence and/or nature of any external restrictions.  Currently, the Foundation 
has no restricted assets.  
 
ESTIMATES 
 
The preparation of combined financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the combined financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates.  
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INCOME TAXES 
 
The Internal Revenue Service has determined that the Foundation is exempt from income taxes 
as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue code and is classified 
as a public charity under Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents presented in the statements of financial position and cash flows 
represent cash on hand and demand deposits at financial institutions with an original maturity of 
three months or less.  
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments in debt and equity securities are reported at fair market value, except for short-term 
highly liquid investments that have a remaining maturity at the time they are purchased of one 
year or less.  These investments are carried at amortized cost.  Included in investments are 
cash and cash equivalents on deposit with money managers.  The fair value is estimated by 
external investment managers, as market values are not readily ascertainable.  These estimates 
involve assumptions and estimation methods that are reviewed by management.  Actual 
valuations could differ from those estimates. 
 
Interest, dividends, and gains and losses, both realized and unrealized, on investments are 
included in the Combined Statements of Activities and Change in Net Assets.  
 
CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
Contributions are recorded at their estimated fair value and are considered to be available for 
unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.  Amounts received that are 
designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for specific purposes are reported as 
temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support that increases those net asset classes. 
 
PLEDGES RECEIVABLE 
 
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be received within one year are recorded at 
estimated net realizable value.  Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be received 
in future years are recorded at the present value of their estimated future cash flows.  The 
discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-free interest rates for United States 
government securities having maturities that correspond to the years in which the promises are 
expected to be received.  
 
Amortization of discounts is included in contribution revenue.  Conditional promises to give are 
not included as support until the conditions are substantially met.   
 
The Foundation uses the allowance method to determine the uncollectible portion of 
unconditional promises to give.  The allowance to uncollectible contributions is based upon 
management’s estimates, including such factors as, overall economic conditions, current and 
historical loss experience, and recent contribution activity.  
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Property and equipment are reported at cost, if purchased, or fair value at the date of donation.  
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets, 
ranging from three to twenty-five years. 
 
GRANTS PAYABLE 
 
Grants are recorded when specifically authorized by the Board of Directors of the Foundation 
and when the grant award is communicated to the grantee. 
 
ANNUITIES PAYABLE 
 
The Foundation has received certain unconditional promises to provide the future contributions 
in the form of deferred giving arrangements, including charitable remainder annuity trusts, 
charitable remainder unitrusts, and pooled income funds.  The various deferred giving 
agreements stipulate the payment of stated annuity amounts, as well as the requirements for 
the eventual use of the principal of the donated funds.  
 
FUNDS HELD FOR OTHERS 
 
Funds held for others as agency funds represent component funds established by unaffiliated 
not-for-profit organizations for their own benefit.  
 
DONATED ASSETS 
 
Donated marketable securities and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at 
their estimated fair values at the date of donation.  
 
DONATED SERVICES 
 
No amounts have been reflected in the combined financial statements for donated services.  
The Foundation pays for most services requiring specific expertise.  However, many individuals 
volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Foundation with specific 
programs and various committee assignments. 
 
NET ASSETS 
 
The Foundation’s net assets and its support and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are 
classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions using two 
classifications: unrestricted and temporarily restricted.  Most contributions, including those with 
donor-imposed restrictions, are subject to the variance power established by the Foundation’s 
governing documents.  The variance power allows the Board of Directors to modify donor 
instructions that are incapable of fulfillment or inconsistent with the charitable needs of the 
community.  As a result of the variance power, most contributions are classified as net assets 
without donor restrictions for financial statement purposes.   
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SPLIT-INTEREST AGREEMENTS 
 
The Foundation administers various charitable remainder trusts and charitable lead trusts.  A 
charitable remainder trust provides for the payment of distributions to designated beneficiaries 
over the trust’s term (usually the designated beneficiary’s lifetime).  At the end of the trust’s 
term, the remaining assets are available for the Foundation’s use.  Under the charitable lead 
trust, the Foundation receives distributions from the trust until the agreement terminates.  At that 
time, the remaining assets of the trust are paid out to the donor or other named beneficiaries.   
 
The fair value of the trusts’ assets has been included in the Foundation’s Combined Statements 
of Financial Position and a corresponding liability has been recorded to reflect the present value 
of required lifetime payments to the named beneficiaries using a discount rate of 2.6% for the 
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.  A range of 2%-9% has been used in prior periods.   
 
Also, various donors have established trusts with financial institutions, naming the Foundation 
as the beneficiary of these charitable remainder trusts.  Under the terms of the split-interest 
agreements, at the time of the donor’s death, the trusts terminate and trust assets are 
distributed to the Foundation.  Based on donor life expectancy and the use of a discount rate of 
2.6%, the present value of future assets expected to be received by the Foundation is included 
in the Foundation’s Combined Statements of Financial Position.  Changes in the value of the 
assets and amortization of the discount on the estimated present value of future benefits are 
included in the change in value of charitable remainder trusts in the Combined Statements of 
Activities and Change in Net Assets.   
 
SPENDING POLICY 
 
The Foundation has adopted a policy whereby it limits the amount of spending that may be 
utilized for grant purposes from endowments to 4.5% of the average daily balance of 
investments over the prior twenty quarters.  This policy enables the Foundation to preserve and 
strengthen its investment base for the future. 
 
NOTE B – CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK ARISING FROM CASH DEPOSITS IN 
EXCESS OF INSURED LIMITS 
 
The Foundation maintains cash balances at some financial institutions in excess of FDIC 
insured limits from time to time.  Based on the credit rating of these institutions, management 
believes there is no significant credit risk related to deposits. 
 
 
NOTE C – DATE OF MANAGEMENT’S REVIEW 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Foundation has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through October 21, 2020, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued.   
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NOTE D – INVESTMENTS 
 
The carrying amounts of investments at June 30th are included in the Foundation’s Combined 
Statements of Financial Position as follows: 
 
  2020  2019 
Assets held – charitable remainder trusts $ 2,084,283 $ 2,154,299
Investments  62,317,747  64,686,531
Total $ 64,402,030 $ 66,840,830
 
Investments at June 30th are classified as follows: 
 
  2020  2019 
Marketable Equity Securities $ 49,465,203 $ 49,707,200
Fixed Income  8,719,740  9,049,942
Other  6,217,087  8,083,688
Total $ 64,402,030 $ 66,840,830
 
Net investment gains (losses) are comprised of the following for the years ending June 30th: 
 
  2020  2019 
Net realized gains/(losses) $              (485,074)   $                (745,706)  
Net unrealized gains/(losses)             2,082,454        1,794,788
Interest and dividend income             1,460,489                  2,001,649   
Total $            3,057,869    $               3,050,731   
 
 
NOTE E – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, 
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, provides the framework for measuring fair value.  
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques 
used to measure fair value.  The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices  
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority 
to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).  The three levels of the fair value hierarchy 
under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows: 
 
Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets 
or liabilities in active markets that the Foundation has the ability to access. 
 
Level 2 – Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 
 

A. Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
B. Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 
C. Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; 
D. Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by 

correlation or other means.  
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If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be observable for 
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.  
 
Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 
 
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on 
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation 
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
 
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.  
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2020 and 2019.   
 
Mutual Funds: Value at the net asset value (NAV) of shares held by the Foundation at year end.  
These typically include investments in marketable equity and fixed income securities.   
 
Money Market Funds: Value based on inputs derived from observable market data based on US 
currency.  
 
The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be 
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.  Furthermore, although the 
Foundation believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market 
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of 
certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting 
date. 
 
The following table sets forth, by level, with the fair value hierarchy, the Foundation’s assets at 
fair value: 
 

 Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2020 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
Mutual Funds $ 58,184,943  6,217,087  0  64,402,030
Money Market Funds  3,465,628  0  0  3,465,628
Total assets at fair value $ 61,650,571  6,217,087  0  67,867,658
 
 

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2019 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
Mutual Funds $ 58,757,142 $ 8,083,688 $ 0 $ 66,840,830
Money Market Funds  3,147,106  0  0  3,147,106
Total assets at fair value $ 61,904,248 $ 8,083,688 $ 0 $ 69,987,936
 
 
The Foundation did not have any level 3 assets for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.   
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NOTE F – PLEDGES AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE 
 
The Foundation’s pledges and grants receivable consist of the following as of June 30th:  
 

2020 2019 

Receivable in less than one year $ 0 $ 0 
Receivable in one to five years 0 0 
Receivable in six or more years 300,000 300,000 

Pledges receivable, gross 300,000 300,000 
Less: discount (160,000) (160,000)

Pledges receivable, net 140,000 140,000 
Grants receivable 37,530 116,821

Pledges and Grants receivable, net $ 177,530 $ 256,821

 
 
NOTE G – FIXED ASSETS 
 
Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30th: 
 
  2020  2019 
Land $                  160,000 $                   160,000 
Building                   944,608                    944,608 
Furniture and equipment                   120,280                    115,609 
Total property and equipment                  1,224,888                  1,220,217 
Less: accumulated depreciation                   (898,069)                     (853,180) 
Property and equipment, net $                  326,819  $                     367,037  
 
 
 
 
NOTE H – OPERATING LEASES 
 
The Foundation leases office space to various tenants at various terms with a cumulative 
annual rental revenue of $16,100 for the year ended June 30, 2020 and $16,095 for the year 
ended June 30, 2019.  
 
The Foundation leases various office equipment from three organizations with payments 
ranging from approximately $1,383 to $13,735 annually, expiring at various times through June 
2020. 
 
Lease expense for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 amounted to approximately 
$22,746 and $22,247 respectively.   
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NOTE I – EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN 
 
The Foundation sponsors a defined contribution retirement savings plan for all regular, full-time 
employees who are twenty-one years of age and have completed one year of service.  Under 
the plan, employees may contribute up to 15% of their annual compensation.  Participants over 
the age of 50 are eligible to make additional catch up contributions.  The Foundation may also  
contribute a discretionary amount of the participants’ compensation each year.  The Foundation 
contributed approximately $20,463 and $28,092 to the plan during the years ending June 30, 
2020 and 2019, respectively.   
 
 
 
NOTE J – FUND CLASSIFICATION 
 
The activities and balances of the Foundation are classified for internal purposes into the 
following groups: 
 

Unrestricted (Discretionary) – The Foundation’s Unrestricted Funds are not designated 
for a specific charitable beneficiary.  These funds are disbursed at the discretion of the 
Foundation’s Board of Directors in response to requests from nonprofit organizations 
and based on an assessment of the most pressing needs.  Unrestricted funds are also 
used to pay administrative expenses.   

 
Field-of-Interest – Field-of-Interest Funds have been created to support a specific field-
of-interest, such as health or education, or a specific geographic area, such as Jasper 
County or the Greater Bluffton Community.  The funds created by giving circles are also 
funds of this type. 
 
Donor-Advised – Donor-Advised Funds are created by donors who wish to remain active 
in their philanthropy and have access to the Foundation’s professional advice and 
management.  Donors may suggest charitable distributions from funds they have 
established, although the Foundation’s Board of Directors has final authority to approve 
or deny all such grants.  Technically, donor-advised funds are a type of unrestricted 
fund.   
 
Designated – Designated funds have been established by a donor to provide grants to a 
specific charitable agency or for a specific charitable purpose.  The Board of Directors  
accepts the donor’s designation as long as the agency or purpose continues to serve the 
public interest.  Scholarship funds and project funds are included in this category. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION – Most fund types may be established either as endowed 
or non-endowed funds.  Endowed funds are intended to be permanent funds and are 
subject to the Foundation’s spending policy.  Non-endowed funds are intended to be 
spent down over time, and are 100% spendable.  Scholarship funds generally must be 
endowed funds. 
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At June 30th, the balances of these internally imposed restrictions were: 
 
  2020  2019 
Net Assets – spendable $         21,698,996 $           21,934,774
Net Assets – accumulated earnings  2,347,996              3,977,588
Net Assets – nonspendable endowment          38,866,285            38,217,726
Total net assets           62,913,277            64,130,088
 
 
NOTE K – INTERNAL FEES CHARGED TO FUNDS 
  
The Foundation enters into agreements with donors when a fund is established that includes an 
internal administrative fee.  The current fee schedules range from 0.75% to 2.5% of annual 
average daily balance of the market value of the fund based on the type of fund and services 
required.  Minimum administrative fee is $200 annually.   
 
 
NOTE L – EXPENSES BY BOTH NATURAL AND FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION – FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 

Programs 

Donor 
Advised 
Funds 

Field of 
Interest 
Funds 

Other 
Funds & 

Programs 
Program 
Subtotals 

Salaries & Benefits 0 2,867 191,139 194,005 
Grants 2,462,047 2,154,866 3,132,073 7,748,987 
Supplies and travel 0 0 2,828 2,828 
Professional fees 148,377 1,210,077 852,310 2,210,764 
Office and Occupancy 0 0 21,233 21,233 
Fundraising/Development 0 89,056 2,327 91,383 
Total Expenses 2,610,424  3,456,866  4,201,909   10,269,200 

 
Supporting Activities 

Management 
& General 

Fund-
Raising 

Supporting 
Subtotal 

Total 
Expenses 

Salaries & Benefits 496,676 384,979 881,654  1,075,660 
Grants 5,250 0 5,250  7,754,237 
Supplies and travel 21,620 0 21,620  24,447 
Professional fees 207,248 0 207,248  2,418,012 
Office and Occupancy 154,670 0 154,670  175,902 
Fundraising/Development 1,900 26,709 28,609  119,993 
Total Expenses 887,363  411,688  1,299,051    11,568,250 
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The allocation to Program for Salaries and Benefits is figured on 100% of the total salaries and 
benefits for the three Program staff.  The remainder is Management and General Expenses.  
100% of the Development and Donor Services three staff and 50% of the CEO salaries and 
benefits are allocated to Fundraising.  Finance and Marketing are allocated to the Management 
and General Expenses.  Donor Advised Funds and Field of Interest funds are split from the total 
as more than 50% or grant making falls into those two fund types. 
 
NOTE M – LIQUIDITY 
 
The majority of the Foundation’s assets consist of investments in marketable securities.  A 
material portion of these investments are readily tradeable and therefore very liquid assets.  The 
Foundation has more than six times its typical annual expenditures in investments.  Most 
contributions received by the Foundation, including those with donor-imposed restrictions, are 
subject to the variance power established by the Foundation’s governing documents.  Because 
of this variance power, contributions are classified as net assets without donor restrictions for 
financial statement purposes and the Foundation’s investments are therefore available to meet 
its liquidity needs. 
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Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statements of Financial Position
As of June 30,

2021 2020
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,801,537 3,465,628   
Pledges and grants receivable, net 177,530 177,530      
Assets held - charitable remainder trusts 2,489,137 2,084,283   
Investments 78,538,369 61,114,294 
Capital Counsel Investments 1,440,399 1,203,453   
Property and equipment, net 295,674 326,819      
Other assets 31,775 5,289          

Total Assets 86,774,421 68,377,296 

Liabilities and net assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 71,572 242,588      
Grants payable 1,145,863 810,049      
Annuities payable 1,416,801 1,438,492   
Funds held for others - agency funds 1,179,304 2,847,890   

Total Liabilities 3,813,540 5,339,019   

Net assets without donor restrictions 82,960,881 63,038,277 
Net assets with donor restrictions 0 0

Total Net Assets 82,960,881 63,038,277 
Total liabilities and net assets 86,774,421 68,377,296 

See Accountants' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
2



Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statements of Activities and Change in Net Assets
For the Years Ended June 30,

2021 2020

Income-unrestricted  
Contributions received 8,253,890 6,609,496            
Net realized gains/losses (293,663) (485,074)              
Net unrealized gains/losses 21,949,909 2,082,454            
Investment income 1,271,707 1,460,489            
Rental income 14,100 16,100                 
Other 1,128,485 792,974               

Total Revenues 32,324,428 10,476,439          

General and administrative expenses-unrestricted
Grants paid 7,173,170 7,310,262            
Program expenses 919,732 929,353               
Salaries and benefits 1,125,010 1,018,835            
Professional and administrative fees 1,113,696 1,033,259            
Supplies and other 185,172 151,472               
Fundraising 81,424 93,314                 
Changes in value of split interest agreements 87,120 82,915                 
Changes in funds held for others 1,668,586 903,951               
Depreciation 47,914 44,889                 

Total Expenses 12,401,824 11,568,250          

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 19,922,604 (1,091,811)           

Increase (decrease) in net assets 19,922,604 (1,091,811)           

Net assets beginning of year 63,038,277 64,130,088          

Net assets at end of year 82,960,881 63,038,277          

See Accountants' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
3



Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statements of Cash Flow
For the Years Ended June 30,

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from contributions 8,253,890$      6,688,787$     
Cash received for rental income 14,100 16,100
Cash received from interest and dividend income 1,271,707 1,460,489
Cash received from other 1,128,485 794,820
Cash paid for grants (6,837,356) (7,573,325)
Cash paid for general, program, and administrative expenses (3,541,112) (2,973,680)
Cash paid for fundraising (81,424) (93,314)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 208,290 (1,680,123)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net purchases and sales of investments 127,619 1,998,645

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 127,619 1,998,645

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 0 0

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 335,909 318,522

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,465,628 3,147,106

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 3,801,537$      3,465,628$     

See Accountants' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
4
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The combined financial statements include the accounts of the Community Foundation of the 
Lowcountry, Inc. (“CFL”) and its Supporting Organization, the Jim and Margaret Krum 
Foundation, Inc., collectively referred to as the “Foundation”.  All balances and transactions 
between the two entities have been eliminated in combination. 
 
The Hilton Head Island Foundation, LLC (“HHIF”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the CFL. 
 
Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. is a community foundation and is governed by a 
board of private citizens from its service area. The Board of Directors of Community Foundation 
of the Lowcountry, Inc. elects the directors and appoints the President/CEO of the Hilton Head 
Island Foundation, LLC. The purpose of Hilton Head Island Foundation, LLC is to accept gifts of 
real property on behalf of Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. and its many funds 
and its Supporting Organization. The purpose of Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. 
is to serve the charitable needs and interests of the residents of four South Carolina counties 
including Beaufort, Colleton, Hampton and Jasper. 

The Jim and Margaret Krum Foundation, Inc. will further the CFL’s exempt purposes by making 
grants directly to the Foundation and to organizations which are, or could be, supported by the 
Foundation consistent with its own charitable purposes. 
 
BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
The combined financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and 
accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.  
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION 
 
The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as codified by the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board.  In accordance with GAAP, the Foundation reports information 
regarding its net assets and activities as with donor restrictions or without donor restrictions, 
depending on the existence and/or nature of any external restrictions.  Currently, the Foundation 
has no restricted assets.  
 
ESTIMATES 
 
The preparation of combined financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the combined financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates.  
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INCOME TAXES 
 
The Internal Revenue Service has determined that the Foundation is exempt from income taxes 
as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue code and is classified 
as a public charity under Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents presented in the statements of financial position and cash flows 
represent cash on hand and demand deposits at financial institutions with an original maturity of 
three months or less.  
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments in debt and equity securities are reported at fair market value, except for short-term 
highly liquid investments that have a remaining maturity at the time they are purchased of one 
year or less.  These investments are carried at amortized cost.  Included in investments are 
cash and cash equivalents on deposit with money managers.  The fair value is estimated by 
external investment managers, as market values are not readily ascertainable.  These estimates 
involve assumptions and estimation methods that are reviewed by management.  Actual 
valuations could differ from those estimates. 
 
Interest, dividends, and gains and losses, both realized and unrealized, on investments are 
included in the Combined Statements of Activities and Change in Net Assets.  
 
CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
Contributions are recorded at their estimated fair value and are considered to be available for 
unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.  Amounts received that are 
designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for specific purposes are reported as 
temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support that increases those net asset classes. 
 
PLEDGES RECEIVABLE 
 
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be received within one year are recorded at 
estimated net realizable value.  Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be received 
in future years are recorded at the present value of their estimated future cash flows.  The 
discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-free interest rates for United States 
government securities having maturities that correspond to the years in which the promises are 
expected to be received.  
 
Amortization of discounts is included in contribution revenue.  Conditional promises to give are 
not included as support until the conditions are substantially met.   
 
The Foundation uses the allowance method to determine the uncollectible portion of 
unconditional promises to give.  The allowance to uncollectible contributions is based upon 
management’s estimates, including such factors as, overall economic conditions, current and 
historical loss experience, and recent contribution activity.  
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Property and equipment are reported at cost, if purchased, or fair value at the date of donation.  
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets, 
ranging from three to twenty-five years. 
 
GRANTS PAYABLE 
 
Grants are recorded when specifically authorized by the Board of Directors of the Foundation 
and when the grant award is communicated to the grantee. 
 
ANNUITIES PAYABLE 
 
The Foundation has received certain unconditional promises to provide the future contributions 
in the form of deferred giving arrangements, including charitable remainder annuity trusts, 
charitable remainder unitrusts, and pooled income funds.  The various deferred giving 
agreements stipulate the payment of stated annuity amounts, as well as the requirements for 
the eventual use of the principal of the donated funds.  
 
FUNDS HELD FOR OTHERS 
 
Funds held for others as agency funds represent component funds established by unaffiliated 
not-for-profit organizations for their own benefit.  
 
DONATED ASSETS 
 
Donated marketable securities and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at 
their estimated fair values at the date of donation.  
 
DONATED SERVICES 
 
No amounts have been reflected in the combined financial statements for donated services.  
The Foundation pays for most services requiring specific expertise.  However, many individuals 
volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Foundation with specific 
programs and various committee assignments. 
 
NET ASSETS 
 
The Foundation’s net assets and its support and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are 
classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions using two 
classifications: unrestricted and temporarily restricted.  Most contributions, including those with 
donor-imposed restrictions, are subject to the variance power established by the Foundation’s 
governing documents.  The variance power allows the Board of Directors to modify donor 
instructions that are incapable of fulfillment or inconsistent with the charitable needs of the 
community.  As a result of the variance power, most contributions are classified as net assets 
without donor restrictions for financial statement purposes.   
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SPLIT-INTEREST AGREEMENTS 
 
The Foundation administers various charitable remainder trusts and charitable lead trusts.  A 
charitable remainder trust provides for the payment of distributions to designated beneficiaries 
over the trust’s term (usually the designated beneficiary’s lifetime).  At the end of the trust’s 
term, the remaining assets are available for the Foundation’s use.  Under the charitable lead 
trust, the Foundation receives distributions from the trust until the agreement terminates.  At that 
time, the remaining assets of the trust are paid out to the donor or other named beneficiaries.   
 
The fair value of the trusts’ assets has been included in the Foundation’s Combined Statements 
of Financial Position and a corresponding liability has been recorded to reflect the present value 
of required lifetime payments to the named beneficiaries using a discount rate of 2.6% for the 
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.  A range of 2%-9% has been used in prior periods.   
 
Also, various donors have established trusts with financial institutions, naming the Foundation 
as the beneficiary of these charitable remainder trusts.  Under the terms of the split-interest 
agreements, at the time of the donor’s death, the trusts terminate and trust assets are 
distributed to the Foundation.  Based on donor life expectancy and the use of a discount rate of 
2.6%, the present value of future assets expected to be received by the Foundation is included 
in the Foundation’s Combined Statements of Financial Position.  Changes in the value of the 
assets and amortization of the discount on the estimated present value of future benefits are 
included in the change in value of charitable remainder trusts in the Combined Statements of 
Activities and Change in Net Assets.   
 
SPENDING POLICY 
 
The Foundation has adopted a policy whereby it limits the amount of spending that may be 
utilized for grant purposes from endowments to 4.5% of the average daily balance of 
investments over the prior twenty quarters.  This policy enables the Foundation to preserve and 
strengthen its investment base for the future. 
 
NOTE B – CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK ARISING FROM CASH DEPOSITS IN 
EXCESS OF INSURED LIMITS 
 
The Foundation maintains cash balances at some financial institutions in excess of FDIC 
insured limits from time to time.  Based on the credit rating of these institutions, management 
believes there is no significant credit risk related to deposits. 
 
 
NOTE C – DATE OF MANAGEMENT’S REVIEW 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Foundation has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through October 8, 2021, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued.   
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NOTE D – INVESTMENTS 
 
The carrying amounts of investments at June 30th are included in the Foundation’s Combined 
Statements of Financial Position as follows: 
 
 2021  2020
Assets held – charitable remainder trusts $ 2,489,137 $ 2,084,283
Investments 79,978,768  62,317,747
Total $ 82,467,905 $ 64,402,030
 
Investments at June 30th are classified as follows: 
 
 2021  2020
Marketable Equity Securities $ 66,873,891 $ 49,465,203
Fixed Income 11,165,777 8,719,740
Other 4,428,237 6,217,087
Total $ 82,467,905 $ 64,402,030
 
Net investment gains (losses) are comprised of the following for the years ending June 30th: 
 
 2021  2020
Net realized gains/(losses) $            (293,663)   $                (485,074)  
Net unrealized gains/(losses)         21,949,909       2,082,454
Interest and dividend income         1,271,707               1,460,489   
Total $         22,927,953    $               3,057,869   
 
 
NOTE E – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, 
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, provides the framework for measuring fair value.  
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques 
used to measure fair value.  The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices  
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority 
to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).  The three levels of the fair value hierarchy 
under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows: 
 
Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets 
or liabilities in active markets that the Foundation has the ability to access. 
 
Level 2 – Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 
 

A. Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
B. Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 
C. Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; 
D. Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by 

correlation or other means.  
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If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be observable for 
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.  
 
Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 
 
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on 
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation 
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
 
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.  
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2020 and 2019.   
 
Mutual Funds: Value at the net asset value (NAV) of shares held by the Foundation at year end.  
These typically include investments in marketable equity and fixed income securities.   
 
Money Market Funds: Value based on inputs derived from observable market data based on US 
currency.  
 
The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be 
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.  Furthermore, although the 
Foundation believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market 
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of 
certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting 
date. 
 
The following table sets forth, by level, with the fair value hierarchy, the Foundation’s assets at 
fair value: 
 

 Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2021
  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total
Mutual Funds $ 78,039,668 4,428,237 0  82,467,905
Money Market Funds  3,801,537 0 0  3,801,537
Total assets at fair value $ 81,841,205 4,428,237 0  86,269,442
 
 

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2020
  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total
Mutual Funds $ 58,184,943 $ 6,217,087 $ 0 $ 64,402,030
Money Market Funds  3,465,628 0 0  3,465,628
Total assets at fair value $ 61,650,571 $ 6,217,087 $ 0 $ 67,867,658
 
 
The Foundation did not have any level 3 assets for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.   
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NOTE F – PLEDGES AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE 
 
The Foundation’s pledges and grants receivable consist of the following as of June 30th:  
 
 2021 2020 

Receivable in less than one year $ 0 $ 0 
Receivable in one to five years 0 0 
Receivable in six or more years 300,000 300,000 

Pledges receivable, gross 300,000 300,000 
Less: discount (160,000) (160,000)

Pledges receivable, net 140,000 140,000 
Grants receivable 37,530 37,530

Pledges and Grants receivable, net $ 177,530 $ 177,530

 
 
NOTE G – FIXED ASSETS 
 
Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30th: 
 
 2021 2020
Land $                160,000 $                   160,000
Building                952,304                   944,608
Furniture and equipment                129,353                   120,280
Total property and equipment            1,241,657                 1,224,888
Less: accumulated depreciation                 (945,983)                    (898,069)
Property and equipment, net $             295,674  $                     326,819  
 
 
 
 
NOTE H – OPERATING LEASES 
 
The Foundation leases office space to various tenants at various terms with a cumulative 
annual rental revenue of $14,100 for the year ended June 30, 2021 and $16,100 for the year 
ended June 30, 2020.  
 
The Foundation leases various office equipment from three organizations with payments 
ranging from approximately $1,383 to $13,735 annually, expiring at various times through June 
2021. 
 
Lease expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 amounted to approximately 
$17,295 and $22,746 respectively.   
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NOTE I – EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN 
 
The Foundation sponsors a defined contribution retirement savings plan for all regular, full-time 
employees who are twenty-one years of age and have completed one year of service.  Under 
the plan, employees may contribute up to 15% of their annual compensation.  Participants over 
the age of 50 are eligible to make additional catch up contributions.  The Foundation may also  
contribute a discretionary amount of the participants’ compensation each year.  The Foundation 
contributed approximately $23,596 and $20,463 to the plan during the years ending June 30, 
2021 and 2020, respectively.   
 
 
 
NOTE J – FUND CLASSIFICATION 
 
The activities and balances of the Foundation are classified for internal purposes into the 
following groups: 
 

Unrestricted (Discretionary) – The Foundation’s Unrestricted Funds are not designated 
for a specific charitable beneficiary.  These funds are disbursed at the discretion of the 
Foundation’s Board of Directors in response to requests from nonprofit organizations 
and based on an assessment of the most pressing needs.  Unrestricted funds are also 
used to pay administrative expenses.   

 
Field-of-Interest – Field-of-Interest Funds have been created to support a specific field-
of-interest, such as health or education, or a specific geographic area, such as Jasper 
County or the Greater Bluffton Community.  The funds created by giving circles are also 
funds of this type. 
 
Donor-Advised – Donor-Advised Funds are created by donors who wish to remain active 
in their philanthropy and have access to the Foundation’s professional advice and 
management.  Donors may suggest charitable distributions from funds they have 
established, although the Foundation’s Board of Directors has final authority to approve 
or deny all such grants.  Technically, donor-advised funds are a type of unrestricted 
fund.   
 
Designated – Designated funds have been established by a donor to provide grants to a 
specific charitable agency or for a specific charitable purpose.  The Board of Directors  
accepts the donor’s designation as long as the agency or purpose continues to serve the 
public interest.  Scholarship funds and project funds are included in this category. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION – Most fund types may be established either as endowed 
or non-endowed funds.  Endowed funds are intended to be permanent funds and are 
subject to the Foundation’s spending policy.  Non-endowed funds are intended to be 
spent down over time, and are 100% spendable.  Scholarship funds generally must be 
endowed funds. 
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At June 30th, the balances of these internally imposed restrictions were: 
 
  2021  2020 
Net Assets – spendable $         27,532,207 $           21,823,996
Net Assets – accumulated earnings  14,523,996              2,347,996
Net Assets – nonspendable endowment          40,904,678            38,866,285
Total net assets           82,960,881            63,038,277
 
 
NOTE K – INTERNAL FEES CHARGED TO FUNDS 
  
The Foundation enters into agreements with donors when a fund is established that includes an 
internal administrative fee.  The current fee schedules range from 0.75% to 2.5% of annual 
average daily balance of the market value of the fund based on the type of fund and services 
required.  Minimum administrative fee is $200 annually.   
 
 
NOTE L – EXPENSES BY BOTH NATURAL AND FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION – FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 

 Programs

 

Donor 
Advised 
Funds

Field of 
Interest 
Funds

Other 
Funds & 

Programs  
Program 
Subtotals

    
Salaries & benefits 48,071 52,212 116,631  216,914
Grants & scholarships 2,286,853 2,317,205 2,474,723  7,078,781
Program expenses 0 559,511 359,991  919,502
Professional fees 165,102 80,207 2,414,133  2,659,442
Office, supplies & travel 0 0 11,625  11,625
Fundraising/Development 0 81,424 0  81,424
Total Expenses 2,500,027 3,090,558 5,377,104   10,967,689

 

 Supporting Activities

 
Management 

& General
Fund-

Raising
Supporting 

Subtotal  
Total 

Expenses

    
Salaries & benefits 718,891 179,545 898,436   1,115,350
Grants & scholarships 5,750 0 5,750   7,084,531
Program expenses 230 0 230   919,732
Professional fees 235,172 132,497 367,669   3,027,112
Office, supplies & travel 118,265 0 118,265   129,890
Fundraising/Development 0 43,785 43,785   125,210
Total Expenses 1,078,308 355,828 1,434,136    12,401,824
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The allocation to Program for Salaries and Benefits is figured on 100% of the total salaries and 
benefits for the three Program staff.  The remainder is Management and General Expenses.  
100% of the Development and Donor Services three staff and 50% of the CEO salaries and 
benefits are allocated to Fundraising.  Finance and Marketing are allocated to the Management 
and General Expenses.  Donor Advised Funds and Field of Interest funds are split from the total 
as more than 50% or grant making falls into those two fund types. 
 
NOTE M – LIQUIDITY 
 
The majority of the Foundation’s assets consist of investments in marketable securities.  A 
material portion of these investments are readily tradeable and therefore very liquid assets.  The 
Foundation has more than six times its typical annual expenditures in investments.  Most 
contributions received by the Foundation, including those with donor-imposed restrictions, are 
subject to the variance power established by the Foundation’s governing documents.  Because 
of this variance power, contributions are classified as net assets without donor restrictions for 
financial statement purposes and the Foundation’s investments are therefore available to meet 
its liquidity needs. 
 



 

` 
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Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statements of Financial Position
As of June 30,

2020 2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,465,628 3,147,106
Pledges and grants receivable, net 177,530 256,821
Assets held - charitable remainder trusts 2,084,283 2,154,299
Investments 61,114,294 63,159,201
Capital Counsel Investments 1,203,453 1,527,330
Property and equipment, net 326,819 367,037
Other assets 5,289 7,135

Total Assets 68,377,296 70,618,929

Liabilities and net assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 242,588 83,349
Grants payable 810,049 1,073,112
Annuities payable 1,438,492 1,578,939
Funds held for others - agency funds 2,847,890 3,753,441

Total Liabilities 5,339,019 6,488,841

Net assets without donor restrictions 63,038,277 64,130,088
Net assets with donor restrictions 0 0

Total Net Assets 63,038,277 64,130,088
Total liabilities and net assets 68,377,296 70,618,929

See Accountants' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
2



Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statements of Activities and Change in Net Assets
For the Years Ended June 30,

2020 2019

Income-unrestricted  
Contributions received 6,609,496 6,421,183
Net realized gains/losses (485,074) (745,706)
Net unrealized gains/losses 2,082,454 1,794,788
Investment income 1,460,489 2,001,649
Rental income 16,100 16,095
Other 792,974 812,878

Total Revenues 10,476,439 10,300,887

General and administrative expenses-unrestricted
Grants paid 7,310,262 7,170,132
Program expenses 929,353 598,100
Salaries and benefits 1,018,835 1,028,240
Professional and administrative fees 1,033,259 1,107,793
Supplies and other 151,472 225,154
Fundraising 93,314 162,205
Changes in value of split interest agreements 82,915 87,812
Changes in funds held for others 903,951 (33,306)
Depreciation 44,889 41,600

Total Expenses 11,568,250 10,387,730

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets (1,091,811) (86,843)

Increase (decrease) in net assets (1,091,811) (86,843)

Net assets beginning of year 64,130,088 64,216,931

Net assets at end of year 63,038,277 64,130,088

See Accountants' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
3



Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. & Supporting Organization
Combined Statements of Cash Flow
For the Years Ended June 30,

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from contributions 6,688,787$      6,394,289$     
Cash received for rental income 16,100 16,095
Cash received from interest and dividend income 1,460,489 2,001,649
Cash received from other 794,820 812,878
Cash paid for grants (7,573,325) (7,134,138)
Cash paid for general, program, and administrative expenses (2,973,680) (3,003,189)
Cash paid for fundraising (93,314) (162,205)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,680,123) (1,074,621)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net purchases and sales of investments 1,998,645 1,929,951

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,998,645 1,929,951

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 0 0

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 318,522 855,330

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,147,106 2,291,776

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 3,465,628$      3,147,106$     

See Accountants' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
4
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The combined financial statements include the accounts of the Community Foundation of the 
Lowcountry, Inc. (“CFL”) and its Supporting Organization, the Jim and Margaret Krum 
Foundation, Inc., collectively referred to as the “Foundation”.  All balances and transactions 
between the two entities have been eliminated in combination. 
 
The Hilton Head Island Foundation, LLC (“HHIF”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the CFL. 
 
Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. is a community foundation and is governed by a 
board of private citizens from its service area. The Board of Directors of Community Foundation 
of the Lowcountry, Inc. elects the directors and appoints the President/CEO of the Hilton Head 
Island Foundation, LLC. The purpose of Hilton Head Island Foundation, LLC is to accept gifts of 
real property on behalf of Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. and its many funds 
and its Supporting Organization. The purpose of Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, Inc. 
is to serve the charitable needs and interests of the residents of four South Carolina counties 
including Beaufort, Colleton, Hampton and Jasper. 

The Jim and Margaret Krum Foundation, Inc. will further the CFL’s exempt purposes by making 
grants directly to the Foundation and to organizations which are, or could be, supported by the 
Foundation consistent with its own charitable purposes. 
 
BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
The combined financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and 
accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.  
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION 
 
The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as codified by the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board.  In accordance with GAAP, the Foundation reports information 
regarding its net assets and activities as with donor restrictions or without donor restrictions, 
depending on the existence and/or nature of any external restrictions.  Currently, the Foundation 
has no restricted assets.  
 
ESTIMATES 
 
The preparation of combined financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the combined financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates.  
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INCOME TAXES 
 
The Internal Revenue Service has determined that the Foundation is exempt from income taxes 
as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue code and is classified 
as a public charity under Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents presented in the statements of financial position and cash flows 
represent cash on hand and demand deposits at financial institutions with an original maturity of 
three months or less.  
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments in debt and equity securities are reported at fair market value, except for short-term 
highly liquid investments that have a remaining maturity at the time they are purchased of one 
year or less.  These investments are carried at amortized cost.  Included in investments are 
cash and cash equivalents on deposit with money managers.  The fair value is estimated by 
external investment managers, as market values are not readily ascertainable.  These estimates 
involve assumptions and estimation methods that are reviewed by management.  Actual 
valuations could differ from those estimates. 
 
Interest, dividends, and gains and losses, both realized and unrealized, on investments are 
included in the Combined Statements of Activities and Change in Net Assets.  
 
CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
Contributions are recorded at their estimated fair value and are considered to be available for 
unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.  Amounts received that are 
designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for specific purposes are reported as 
temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support that increases those net asset classes. 
 
PLEDGES RECEIVABLE 
 
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be received within one year are recorded at 
estimated net realizable value.  Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be received 
in future years are recorded at the present value of their estimated future cash flows.  The 
discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-free interest rates for United States 
government securities having maturities that correspond to the years in which the promises are 
expected to be received.  
 
Amortization of discounts is included in contribution revenue.  Conditional promises to give are 
not included as support until the conditions are substantially met.   
 
The Foundation uses the allowance method to determine the uncollectible portion of 
unconditional promises to give.  The allowance to uncollectible contributions is based upon 
management’s estimates, including such factors as, overall economic conditions, current and 
historical loss experience, and recent contribution activity.  
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Property and equipment are reported at cost, if purchased, or fair value at the date of donation.  
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets, 
ranging from three to twenty-five years. 
 
GRANTS PAYABLE 
 
Grants are recorded when specifically authorized by the Board of Directors of the Foundation 
and when the grant award is communicated to the grantee. 
 
ANNUITIES PAYABLE 
 
The Foundation has received certain unconditional promises to provide the future contributions 
in the form of deferred giving arrangements, including charitable remainder annuity trusts, 
charitable remainder unitrusts, and pooled income funds.  The various deferred giving 
agreements stipulate the payment of stated annuity amounts, as well as the requirements for 
the eventual use of the principal of the donated funds.  
 
FUNDS HELD FOR OTHERS 
 
Funds held for others as agency funds represent component funds established by unaffiliated 
not-for-profit organizations for their own benefit.  
 
DONATED ASSETS 
 
Donated marketable securities and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at 
their estimated fair values at the date of donation.  
 
DONATED SERVICES 
 
No amounts have been reflected in the combined financial statements for donated services.  
The Foundation pays for most services requiring specific expertise.  However, many individuals 
volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Foundation with specific 
programs and various committee assignments. 
 
NET ASSETS 
 
The Foundation’s net assets and its support and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are 
classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions using two 
classifications: unrestricted and temporarily restricted.  Most contributions, including those with 
donor-imposed restrictions, are subject to the variance power established by the Foundation’s 
governing documents.  The variance power allows the Board of Directors to modify donor 
instructions that are incapable of fulfillment or inconsistent with the charitable needs of the 
community.  As a result of the variance power, most contributions are classified as net assets 
without donor restrictions for financial statement purposes.   
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SPLIT-INTEREST AGREEMENTS 
 
The Foundation administers various charitable remainder trusts and charitable lead trusts.  A 
charitable remainder trust provides for the payment of distributions to designated beneficiaries 
over the trust’s term (usually the designated beneficiary’s lifetime).  At the end of the trust’s 
term, the remaining assets are available for the Foundation’s use.  Under the charitable lead 
trust, the Foundation receives distributions from the trust until the agreement terminates.  At that 
time, the remaining assets of the trust are paid out to the donor or other named beneficiaries.   
 
The fair value of the trusts’ assets has been included in the Foundation’s Combined Statements 
of Financial Position and a corresponding liability has been recorded to reflect the present value 
of required lifetime payments to the named beneficiaries using a discount rate of 2.6% for the 
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.  A range of 2%-9% has been used in prior periods.   
 
Also, various donors have established trusts with financial institutions, naming the Foundation 
as the beneficiary of these charitable remainder trusts.  Under the terms of the split-interest 
agreements, at the time of the donor’s death, the trusts terminate and trust assets are 
distributed to the Foundation.  Based on donor life expectancy and the use of a discount rate of 
2.6%, the present value of future assets expected to be received by the Foundation is included 
in the Foundation’s Combined Statements of Financial Position.  Changes in the value of the 
assets and amortization of the discount on the estimated present value of future benefits are 
included in the change in value of charitable remainder trusts in the Combined Statements of 
Activities and Change in Net Assets.   
 
SPENDING POLICY 
 
The Foundation has adopted a policy whereby it limits the amount of spending that may be 
utilized for grant purposes from endowments to 4.5% of the average daily balance of 
investments over the prior twenty quarters.  This policy enables the Foundation to preserve and 
strengthen its investment base for the future. 
 
NOTE B – CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK ARISING FROM CASH DEPOSITS IN 
EXCESS OF INSURED LIMITS 
 
The Foundation maintains cash balances at some financial institutions in excess of FDIC 
insured limits from time to time.  Based on the credit rating of these institutions, management 
believes there is no significant credit risk related to deposits. 
 
 
NOTE C – DATE OF MANAGEMENT’S REVIEW 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Foundation has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through October 21, 2020, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued.   
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NOTE D – INVESTMENTS 
 
The carrying amounts of investments at June 30th are included in the Foundation’s Combined 
Statements of Financial Position as follows: 
 
  2020  2019 
Assets held – charitable remainder trusts $ 2,084,283 $ 2,154,299
Investments  62,317,747  64,686,531
Total $ 64,402,030 $ 66,840,830
 
Investments at June 30th are classified as follows: 
 
  2020  2019 
Marketable Equity Securities $ 49,465,203 $ 49,707,200
Fixed Income  8,719,740  9,049,942
Other  6,217,087  8,083,688
Total $ 64,402,030 $ 66,840,830
 
Net investment gains (losses) are comprised of the following for the years ending June 30th: 
 
  2020  2019 
Net realized gains/(losses) $              (485,074)   $                (745,706)  
Net unrealized gains/(losses)             2,082,454        1,794,788
Interest and dividend income             1,460,489                  2,001,649   
Total $            3,057,869    $               3,050,731   
 
 
NOTE E – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, 
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, provides the framework for measuring fair value.  
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques 
used to measure fair value.  The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices  
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority 
to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).  The three levels of the fair value hierarchy 
under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows: 
 
Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets 
or liabilities in active markets that the Foundation has the ability to access. 
 
Level 2 – Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 
 

A. Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
B. Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 
C. Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; 
D. Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by 

correlation or other means.  
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If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be observable for 
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.  
 
Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 
 
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on 
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation 
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
 
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.  
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2020 and 2019.   
 
Mutual Funds: Value at the net asset value (NAV) of shares held by the Foundation at year end.  
These typically include investments in marketable equity and fixed income securities.   
 
Money Market Funds: Value based on inputs derived from observable market data based on US 
currency.  
 
The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be 
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.  Furthermore, although the 
Foundation believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market 
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of 
certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting 
date. 
 
The following table sets forth, by level, with the fair value hierarchy, the Foundation’s assets at 
fair value: 
 

 Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2020 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
Mutual Funds $ 58,184,943  6,217,087  0  64,402,030
Money Market Funds  3,465,628  0  0  3,465,628
Total assets at fair value $ 61,650,571  6,217,087  0  67,867,658
 
 

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2019 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
Mutual Funds $ 58,757,142 $ 8,083,688 $ 0 $ 66,840,830
Money Market Funds  3,147,106  0  0  3,147,106
Total assets at fair value $ 61,904,248 $ 8,083,688 $ 0 $ 69,987,936
 
 
The Foundation did not have any level 3 assets for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.   
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NOTE F – PLEDGES AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE 
 
The Foundation’s pledges and grants receivable consist of the following as of June 30th:  
 

2020 2019 

Receivable in less than one year $ 0 $ 0 
Receivable in one to five years 0 0 
Receivable in six or more years 300,000 300,000 

Pledges receivable, gross 300,000 300,000 
Less: discount (160,000) (160,000)

Pledges receivable, net 140,000 140,000 
Grants receivable 37,530 116,821

Pledges and Grants receivable, net $ 177,530 $ 256,821

 
 
NOTE G – FIXED ASSETS 
 
Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30th: 
 
  2020  2019 
Land $                  160,000 $                   160,000 
Building                   944,608                    944,608 
Furniture and equipment                   120,280                    115,609 
Total property and equipment                  1,224,888                  1,220,217 
Less: accumulated depreciation                   (898,069)                     (853,180) 
Property and equipment, net $                  326,819  $                     367,037  
 
 
 
 
NOTE H – OPERATING LEASES 
 
The Foundation leases office space to various tenants at various terms with a cumulative 
annual rental revenue of $16,100 for the year ended June 30, 2020 and $16,095 for the year 
ended June 30, 2019.  
 
The Foundation leases various office equipment from three organizations with payments 
ranging from approximately $1,383 to $13,735 annually, expiring at various times through June 
2020. 
 
Lease expense for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 amounted to approximately 
$22,746 and $22,247 respectively.   
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NOTE I – EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN 
 
The Foundation sponsors a defined contribution retirement savings plan for all regular, full-time 
employees who are twenty-one years of age and have completed one year of service.  Under 
the plan, employees may contribute up to 15% of their annual compensation.  Participants over 
the age of 50 are eligible to make additional catch up contributions.  The Foundation may also  
contribute a discretionary amount of the participants’ compensation each year.  The Foundation 
contributed approximately $20,463 and $28,092 to the plan during the years ending June 30, 
2020 and 2019, respectively.   
 
 
 
NOTE J – FUND CLASSIFICATION 
 
The activities and balances of the Foundation are classified for internal purposes into the 
following groups: 
 

Unrestricted (Discretionary) – The Foundation’s Unrestricted Funds are not designated 
for a specific charitable beneficiary.  These funds are disbursed at the discretion of the 
Foundation’s Board of Directors in response to requests from nonprofit organizations 
and based on an assessment of the most pressing needs.  Unrestricted funds are also 
used to pay administrative expenses.   

 
Field-of-Interest – Field-of-Interest Funds have been created to support a specific field-
of-interest, such as health or education, or a specific geographic area, such as Jasper 
County or the Greater Bluffton Community.  The funds created by giving circles are also 
funds of this type. 
 
Donor-Advised – Donor-Advised Funds are created by donors who wish to remain active 
in their philanthropy and have access to the Foundation’s professional advice and 
management.  Donors may suggest charitable distributions from funds they have 
established, although the Foundation’s Board of Directors has final authority to approve 
or deny all such grants.  Technically, donor-advised funds are a type of unrestricted 
fund.   
 
Designated – Designated funds have been established by a donor to provide grants to a 
specific charitable agency or for a specific charitable purpose.  The Board of Directors  
accepts the donor’s designation as long as the agency or purpose continues to serve the 
public interest.  Scholarship funds and project funds are included in this category. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION – Most fund types may be established either as endowed 
or non-endowed funds.  Endowed funds are intended to be permanent funds and are 
subject to the Foundation’s spending policy.  Non-endowed funds are intended to be 
spent down over time, and are 100% spendable.  Scholarship funds generally must be 
endowed funds. 
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At June 30th, the balances of these internally imposed restrictions were: 
 
  2020  2019 
Net Assets – spendable $         21,698,996 $           21,934,774
Net Assets – accumulated earnings  2,347,996              3,977,588
Net Assets – nonspendable endowment          38,866,285            38,217,726
Total net assets           62,913,277            64,130,088
 
 
NOTE K – INTERNAL FEES CHARGED TO FUNDS 
  
The Foundation enters into agreements with donors when a fund is established that includes an 
internal administrative fee.  The current fee schedules range from 0.75% to 2.5% of annual 
average daily balance of the market value of the fund based on the type of fund and services 
required.  Minimum administrative fee is $200 annually.   
 
 
NOTE L – EXPENSES BY BOTH NATURAL AND FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION – FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 

Programs 

Donor 
Advised 
Funds 

Field of 
Interest 
Funds 

Other 
Funds & 

Programs 
Program 
Subtotals 

Salaries & Benefits 0 2,867 191,139 194,005 
Grants 2,462,047 2,154,866 3,132,073 7,748,987 
Supplies and travel 0 0 2,828 2,828 
Professional fees 148,377 1,210,077 852,310 2,210,764 
Office and Occupancy 0 0 21,233 21,233 
Fundraising/Development 0 89,056 2,327 91,383 
Total Expenses 2,610,424  3,456,866  4,201,909   10,269,200 

 
Supporting Activities 

Management 
& General 

Fund-
Raising 

Supporting 
Subtotal 

Total 
Expenses 

Salaries & Benefits 496,676 384,979 881,654  1,075,660 
Grants 5,250 0 5,250  7,754,237 
Supplies and travel 21,620 0 21,620  24,447 
Professional fees 207,248 0 207,248  2,418,012 
Office and Occupancy 154,670 0 154,670  175,902 
Fundraising/Development 1,900 26,709 28,609  119,993 
Total Expenses 887,363  411,688  1,299,051    11,568,250 
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The allocation to Program for Salaries and Benefits is figured on 100% of the total salaries and 
benefits for the three Program staff.  The remainder is Management and General Expenses.  
100% of the Development and Donor Services three staff and 50% of the CEO salaries and 
benefits are allocated to Fundraising.  Finance and Marketing are allocated to the Management 
and General Expenses.  Donor Advised Funds and Field of Interest funds are split from the total 
as more than 50% or grant making falls into those two fund types. 
 
NOTE M – LIQUIDITY 
 
The majority of the Foundation’s assets consist of investments in marketable securities.  A 
material portion of these investments are readily tradeable and therefore very liquid assets.  The 
Foundation has more than six times its typical annual expenditures in investments.  Most 
contributions received by the Foundation, including those with donor-imposed restrictions, are 
subject to the variance power established by the Foundation’s governing documents.  Because 
of this variance power, contributions are classified as net assets without donor restrictions for 
financial statement purposes and the Foundation’s investments are therefore available to meet 
its liquidity needs. 
 











































































































































































































































































































































 Hilton Head MLK Committee for Justice 

1 
 

 

 

Board Meeting via email on Tuesday August 29, 2023 

Attending: Michelle Dallas, Jennifer Delgado, Margaret Johnson, Leah Long, Galen Miller, DeShara 
Mitchell, Italia Parisi, Sandra Willis 

Leah Long moved to allow the Hilton Head MLK Committee for Justice to apply for a grant from the 
Town of Hilton Head ATAX Committee. Galen Miller Seconded. Margaret Johnson voted to abstain due 
to her position on the ATAX Committee. The other 5 votes were yes.  

September meeting TBD.  
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